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MANIPAL HOSPITALS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Regd Office: The Annexe, # 98/2, Rustom Bagh, Off HAL Airport Road, Bangalore – 560017, 

Karnataka | CIN: U85110KA2003PTC033055 
 

NOTICE  
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the 22nd Annual General Meeting of Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 
(“the Company”) will be held on Friday, July 4, 2025 at 12 noon at the registered office of the 
Company at The Annexe, #98/2, Rustom Bagh, Hal Airport Road, Bangalore – 560017, to transact the 
following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1. TO ADOPT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 and 
the Statement of Profit and Loss for the Financial Year ended as on the date, together with the 
Report of the Board of the Directors and Auditors thereon; 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
2. TO RATIFY REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO COST AUDITOR FOR THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2025-26 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as 
Ordinary Resolution.  

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and rules framed thereunder (including 
any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to such 
other approvals, consents and permissions, if required, the shareholders hereby ratify the 
remuneration payable up to Rs. 1,80,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Eighty Thousand only) plus 
applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses to M/s. Rao, Murthy and Associates, Cost 
Accountants, Bangalore, who have been appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to 
conduct audit of cost records for the financial year 2025-26. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company and the Company 
Secretary be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts and take all such steps as may 
be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 By order of the Board 
 For Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 

 

 
Date: May 27, 2025                                                                 Khadija Vahora 
Place: Bengaluru                                    Company Secretary 

A37266                                      
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NOTES: 

 
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting is entitled to appoint a 

proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and such proxy need not be a member of the 
company. 

2. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the registered office of the company, not 
less than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the annual general meeting. 

3. Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report to the Annual General 
Meeting. Members are requested to intimate the Company of any change in their registered 
address. 

4. Corporate members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the board resolution / 
corporate representation letter authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the annual 
general meeting 

5. In keeping with Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ Green Initiative measures, the Company 
hereby requests members who have not yet registered their email addresses so far, to register 
the same for receiving all communications including annual report, notices, circulars etc. 
from the Company electronically. 

6. Route map to the venue: 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

Item No. 2 

In terms of provisions of Section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Cost 
records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to have the audit of its cost records 
conducted by a Cost Accountant in Practice. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting 
held on May 27, 2025 approved the appointment and remuneration of Ms. Rao, Murthy and 
Associates, Cost Accountants, Bangalore to conduct audit of cost records of the Company for 
products covered under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 for the Financial Year 
ending March 31, 2026 at a remuneration of Rs. 1,80,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Eighty Thousand Only) 
plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as approved by the Board of 
Directors is required to be ratified by the members of the Company. 
 
Accordingly, the consent of the members is sought by passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at 
Item No.2 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the 
Financial Year ending March 31, 2026. 
 
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives is 
in any way concerned or interested in this resolution. 
 
 
 
 

 
By order of the Board 

 For Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 

 

 
Date: May 27, 2025                                                                    Khadija Vahora 
Place: Bengaluru                                    Company Secretary 

A37266                                       
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Form No. MGT-11 

Proxy Form 
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) 

of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 
CIN: U85110KA2003PTC033055 
Name of the Company: Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 
Registered office: The Annexe, #98/2, Rustom Bagh, Off. HAL Airport Road, Bangalore 560 017,   

Karnataka 
 
Name of the member(s):  
Registered Address:  
E-mail Id:  
Folio No. / Client Id:  
DP Id:  

 
I/We being the holder (s) of ……… shares of the above named company, hereby appoint 
 

1. Mr./Ms ………………………………………… or failing him 

2. Mr./Ms…………………………………………. or failing him 

3. Mr./Ms………………………………………….  
 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 15th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday July 4, 2025 at 12 noon at registered office of 
the Company at The Annexe , #98/2 Rustom Bagh Road, Off HAL Airport Road, Bengaluru 560017, 
Karnataka and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
 

Resolution 
No.  

Resolutions Vote* 
For Against 

Ordinary Business 
1. To adopt financial statements (standalone and 

consolidated) for the year ended March 31, 2025.  
  

Special Business 
2.  To ratify remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor 

for the Financial Year 2025-26. 
  

 
Signed this …….. day of ………… 2025 
 
 
Signature of the shareholder: ………………………………………                                                
 
 
Signature of the Proxy holder(s): ………………………………………. 
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Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 
Registered Office: The Annexe, #98/2 Rustom Bagh, HAL Airport Road Bangalore-560017 

CIN: U85110KA2003PTC033055 | P +91 80 4936 0300 | www.manipalhospitals.com 
 

ATTENDENCE SLIP 
Shareholders attending the Meeting in person or by proxy are requested to complete the attendance slip and 
hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall. 
I hereby record my presence at the 22nd Annual General Meeting of the Company on Friday July 4, 2025 at 12 
noon at The Annexe, #98/2, Rustom Bagh, HAL Airport Road, Bengaluru-560017 

 
………………………………………………………. ……………………………………… 
Name of the Shareholder Signature of the Shareholder  

/ Authorised Representative 
 

 
…………………………………………………. 

 
…………………………………. 

Name of the Authorised Representative                     No. of shares held 
  
  
Folio No.  
 
…………………… 

DP ID*  
 
………………… 

Client ID* 
 
………………. 

*Applicable for members holding shares in electronic form     
 
 
……………………………………………… …………………………………….. 
Full Name of Proxy Signature of Proxy 
         
 
(Only shareholders/proxies/authorised representatives are allowed to attend the meeting.) 
 
 
 

 

http://www.manipalhospitals.com


































BS R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Embassy Golf Links Business Park 
Pebble Beach, B Block, 3rd Floor 
No. 13/2, off Intermediate Ring Road 
Bengaluru - 560 071, India 
Telephone: +91 80 4682 3000 
Fax: +91 80 4682 3999 

lndBOBndBnt Auditors RBOOrt 
To the Members of Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Manipal Hospitals Private Limited (the "Company") which 
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit and other 
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. ✓ 
The Board of Directors ;s also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reportinq proce~ 

Registered Office: 

BS R & Co. (a partnership firm with Registration No. BA61223) converted into BS R & Co. LLP (a 14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco 
Limited Liability Partnership wilh LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) with effect from October 14, 2013 Center, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai• 400063 
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BS R & Co. LLP 

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued) 

Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of/J or 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. i-/' 
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BS R & Co. LLP 

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued) 

Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the 
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014. 

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors on 31 March 2025 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f. the modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith 
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and 
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014. 

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in "Annexure B". 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its financial 
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 32 to the financial statements. 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses. 

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
the Note 44 (vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
the Note 44 (vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from 
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe tha~th 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), as provided under (i) and (ii) ab , 

1 
/ / 

contain any material misstatement. W 
e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 
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BS R & Co. LLP 

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued) 

Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below, 
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have a 
feature of audit trail (edit log) facility, and the same has operated throughout the year for all 
relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares: 

The feature of audit trail implemented for related fields/tables was done in a phased manner 
at the application as well as the database layer of the accounting software relating to 
Purchase, Inventory, account payable, fixed assets and general ledger and hence was not 
enabled throughout the year. 

The feature of audit trail implemented for related fields/tables was done in a phased manner 
at the database layer of the accounting software relating to revenue, account receivable, 
inventory, and hence was not enabled throughout the year. 

Further, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the year for the 
respective accounting software, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature 
being tampered with. Additionally, where the audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled in the 
previous year, the audit trail (edit log) has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention except for the instances mentioned above. 

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197 ( 16) of the Act: 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the 
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) 
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us. 

For B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 

~~~~arma 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 27 May 2025 

Partner 

Membership No.: 118756 

ICAI UDIN:25118756BMOFOL7886 
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BS R & Co. LLP 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements 
of Manipal Hospitals Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of use assets. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(i) (b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(ii) (a) 

(b) 

(iii) 

(a) 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification 
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in 
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain 
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of 
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of 
its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in 
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 
(including Right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the 
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property 
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, 
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by 
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the 
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class 
of inventory 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits 
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has made investments in and granted loans to 
companies and other parties. The Company has provided security to companies. The Company 
has not made any investments in, granted any loans to or provided security to firms or limited 
liability partnerships. The Company has not provided security to any other parties. The Company 
has not stood guarantee or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, 
to any companies, firms, limited liability partnerships, or other parties during the year. Details of 
the loans granted and securities provided are stated in subclause (a) as below: 

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explani; / 
qiven to us the Company has qranted loans and provided security as below, AJ '1/ 
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BS R & Co. LLP 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements 
of Manipal Hospitals Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(Continued) 

Particulars Security Loans 
(in Rs. crore) (in Rs. crore) 

Aggregate amount during the 
year 
Holding Company* # - 
Fellow Subsidaries* # - 
Subsidiary* # 314.90 
Others - 0.63 

Balance outstanding as at 
balance sheet date 
Holding Company* # - 
Fellow Subsidiaries* # - 
Subsidiary* # 12.41 
Others - 0.20 

*As per the Companies Act, 2013 

#During the year, the Company along with its Holding company, its Subsidiary and its Fellow 
Subsidiaries has provided security to various lenders with respect to term loans amounting to 
Rs. 4,663.53 crore taken by the Company, its Holding Company, its Subsidiary and its Fellow 
Subsidiaries. Also, refer note 32 (iii) to the financial statements. 

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made, security given during the year and the 
terms and conditions of the grant of loans provided during the year are not prejudicial to the 
interest of the Company. Further, the Company has not stood guarantee or given any advance 
in the nature of loan to any party during the year. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of 
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been 
regular. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party 
during the year. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect 
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any 
party during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling 
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the 
overdues of existing loans given to same parties. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the 
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of 
repayment. 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of records of the Company, in respect of loans and security given by the Company, in our opinion 
the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. Further, 
there ace no investments, loans, quarantees and security in respect of which pco,ision: 

1

o~L,/ 
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BS R & Co. LLP 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements 
of Manipal Hospitals Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(Continued) 

section 186 of the Act are applicable. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from 
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 
148(1) of the Act in respect of healthcare services provided by it and are of the opinion that 
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, 
we have not carried out a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether 
these are accurate or complete. 

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and 
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been 
subsumed into GST. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods 
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs 
or Cess or other statutory dues have been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, 
though there have been slight delays in a few cases of provident fund, professional tax and 
unclaimed statutory bonus. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service 
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or 
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable, except as mentioned below: 

Name of the Nature of Period to Amount Due date Date of 
statute the dues which the (Rs. in payment 

amount crore) 
relates 

The Payment Unpaid 2015-16 0.02 30 November Yet to be 
of Bonus Act Accumulatio 2018 paid 
1965 and ns related to 
labour welfare Bonus 2016 - 17 0.11 30 November Yet to be 
fund 2019 paid 
regulations of 
respective 2017 - 18 0.05 30 November Yet to be 
states 2020 paid 

2017 - 18 0.04 30 November Yet to be 
2021 paid 

2018 - 19 0.04 30 November Yet to be 
2021 paid 

2018 - 19 0.18 30 November Yet to be 
2022 paid 

2019 - 20 0.13 30 November Yet to be 
2022 paid ;/ Page?;!J 



BS R & Co. LLP 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements 
of Manipal Hospitals Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(Continued) 

Name of the Nature of Period to Amount Due date Date of 
statute the dues which the (Rs. in payment 

amount crore) 
relates 

2019- 20 0.27 30 November Yet to be 
2023 paid 

The Employee Provident March to 0.17 Various Yet to be 
Provident Fund October 2019 paid 
Fund and 
Miscellaneous 
Provisions 
Act, 1952 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Service Tax 
and Income Tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows: 

Name of Nature of Amount Period to Forum where Remarks, if 
the statute the dues (Rs. in which the dispute is any 

crore) amount pending 
relates 

Goods and Goods 12.38 2017 - High Court of 
Service Tax and 2025 Karnataka 
Act, 2017 Service 

Tax 

Goods and Goods 11.59 2017 - High Court of Out of the 
Service Tax and 2022 Karnataka total disputed 
Act, 2017 Service amount of Rs. 

Tax 25.38 crore, 
Rs. 13.79 
crore towards 
the demand 
of GST 
(without 
interest) paid 
under protest. 

Goods and Goods 2.38 2021-2023 Writ petition filed Refer Note 32 
Service Tax and in High Court of (ii) (c) in the 
Act, 2017 Service Karnataka financial 

Tax subsequent to statements 
31 March 2025 
against the order 
passed by Joint 
Commissioner of 
Central tax 



BS R & Co. LLP 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements 
of Manipal Hospitals Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(Continued) 

Name of Nature of Amount Period to Forum where Remarks, if 
the statute the dues (Rs. in which the dispute is any 

crore) amount pending 
relates 

during FY 2024- 
25. 

Finance Act, Service 6.55 2014 - CESTAT Out of the 
1994 Tax 2017 total disputed 

amount of Rs. 
10.10 crore, 
Rs. 3.55 crore 
paid under 
protest. 

Finance Act, Service 0.99 2014 - Commissioner of Out of the 
1994 Tax 2017 Service Tax total disputed 

(Appeals) amount of Rs. 
1.30 crore, 
Rs. 0.31 crore 
paid under 
protest 

Income Tax Income 1.69 2018-19 Commissioner of 
Act, 1961 Tax Income Tax 

(Appeals) 

Income Tax Income 0.40 2019-20 Commissioner of 
Act, 1961 Tax Income Tax 

(Appeals) 

Income Tax Income 0.67 2022-23 Commissioner of 
Act, 1961 Tax Income Tax 

(Appeals) 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, 
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and 
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or government or government authority. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the 
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the Company. we report that no funds raised on short-teem basi: :~ 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements 
of Manipal Hospitals Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(Continued) 

been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from 
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary as defined under 
the Act. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we 
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in 
its subsidiary (as defined under the Act). 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of 
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year. 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by 
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and 
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, 
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period 
under audit. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors 
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies 
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordinqly, the requirements of c?~s / 
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3(xvi)(d) are not applicable. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination 
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes 
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent 
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, 
clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 

For B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 27 May 2025 

AJ~~- 
?Oddartha Sharma 

Partner 

Membership No.: 118756 

ICAI UDIN:25118756BMOFOL7886 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements 
of Manipal Hospitals Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 
Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial 
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Manipal Hospitals 
Private Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note"). 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation offina~fc~/ / 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements 
of Manipal Hospitals Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(Continued) 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 27 May 2025 

Partner 

Membership No.: 118756 

ICAI UDIN:25118756BMOFOL7886 
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Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 
Balance Sheet as at 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Capital work-in-progress 
Right-of-use assets 
Intangible assets 
Financial assets 

Investments 
Loans 
Other financial assets 

Deferred tax assets (net) 
Income tax assets (net) 
Other non-current assets 

Current assets 
Inventories 
Financial assets 

Investments 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 
Loans 
Other financial assets 

Other current assets 

Assets held for sale 
Total assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 
Equity share capital 
Other equity 
Total equity 

Liabilities 

Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 
Lease liabilities 

Provisions 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 
Lease liabilities 
Trade payables 

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

Other financial liabilities 
Other current liabilities 
Current tax liabilities (net) 
Provisions 

(f in erores) 
Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

3.1 752.97 726.41 
3.2 13.33 9.66 
4.1 393. 13 403.97 
4.2 27.80 38.31 

5.1 730.40 726.68 
5.2 1241 33.46 
5.3 25.60 24.69 
16 16.56 14.44 
6 I 125 58.64 
7 20.12 2.77 

2,003.57 2,039.03 

9 31.37 27.27 

10.1 399.07 61.40 
10.2 109.47 8431 
10.3 65.21 60.94 
10.4 7.90 
10.5 0.26 0.20 
10.6 12.52 3.89 
II 10.55 29.75 

628.45 275.66 

8 6.50 6.50 
2,638.52 2,321.19 

12 
13 

1,025.30 
225.33 

1,025.30 
(104.87) 

1,250.63 920.43 

14.1 
14.2 
15 

17.1 
14.2 
17.2 

18 
20 
21 
19 

Total equity and liabilities 

Material Accounting policies 

407.99 374.42 
574.16 558.02 

7.71 
982.15 940.15 

61.47 54.68 
11.69 11.49 

6.11 5.40 

268.89 352.26 

22.56 8.56 
20.17 16.99 
1.78 0.47 

1307 10.76 
405.74 460.61 

2,638.52 2,321.19 

2.2 

The accompanying notes are an integral pact of financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For BS R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Finn Registration number · 101248W/W - 100022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 

~~ovJL 
Siddartha Shanna 
Partner 
Membership number: 118756 

0~- ~ A A ~A~~ cJyl 
~~ ~·~·· 

Sameer Agarwal Dr. H. Sudarshan Balla! 
Director Director 
DIN: 07554053 DIN: 01195055 

Place . Bengaluru 
Date: May 27, 2025 

Khadija G Vahora 
Company Secretary 
Membership number: A3 7266 

Place : Bengaluru 
Date: May 27, 2025 



Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 

Note 

Income 
Revenue from operations 
Other income 
Finance income 
Total income 

22 
23 
24 

Expenses 
Purchase of medical consumables and pharmacy items 
Changes in inventories of medical consumables and pharmacy items 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Other expenses 
Total expenses 

Profit before tax 

Tax expense 
Current tax 
Deferred tax 
Total tax expense 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income (OCI) 
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: 
Re-measurement loss of defined benefit plans 
Income tax effect on above 
OCI for the year (net of tax) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per equity share 
[nominal value of share f 10 (March 31, 2024: t 10)] 
Basic(~) 
Diluted(~) 

25 
26 
27 
28 
29 

(t in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

2,153.75 1,787.81 
19.26 17.24 
6. IO 12.84 

2,179.ll 1,817.89 

367.23 315.71 
(4. 10) 0.43 

240.97 209.71 
116.89 123.70 
125.63 I 05.48 
886.95 746.63 

1,733.57 1,501.66 

445.54 316.23 

16 
16 

116.11 
(179) 

92.89 
(10.63) 

ll4.32 82.26 

331.22 233.97 

Material Accounting policies 

(1.35) (0.83) 
0.33 0.21 
(1.02) (0.62) 

330.20 233.35 

30 

3.23 2.28 
3.23 2.28 

2.2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration number: 101248W/W - 100022 

~~~Jl· 
Siddartha Shanna 
Partner 
Membership number: I 18756 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 

~~\ ~~t,~ 
Sameer Agarwal Dr. H. Sudarshan Ballal 
Director 
DIN: 07554053 

Director 
DIN: 01195055 

Khadija G Vahora 
Company Secretary 
Membership number: A3 7266 

Place : Bengaluru 
Date: May 27, 2025 

Place : Bengaluru 
Date : May 27, 2025 



Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025 

(a) Equity share capital= 
Nos. (f in crores) 

Eqnity shares off. 10 each, issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 

Balance as at April 01, 2023 
Change in equity share capital during the year 
Balance as at March 31, 2024 
Change in equity share capital during the year 
Balance as at March 31, 2025 

1,02,52,97 ,268 1,025.30 

1,02,52,97,268 1,025.30 

1,02,52,97,268 1,025.30 

* Also, refer note 12 

(b) Other equity** 

Balance as at April 01, 2023 
Profit for the year 
OCI for the year (net of tax) 
Balance as at March 31, 2024 
Profit for the year 
OCI for the year (net of tax) 
Balance as at March 31, 2025 

(fin crorcs) 
Reserves and Surplus 

Securities Retained Amalgamation Re-measurement Total other equity 
premium earnings adjustment gain/(loss) on defined 

deficit account benefit plan 

246.89 (526.52) (59.11) 0.52 (338.22) 
233.97 233.97 

(0.62) (0.62) 
246.89 (292.55) (59.11) (0.10) (104.87) 

331.22 331.22 
(1.02) (I 02) 

246.89 38.67 (59. ll) (1.12) 225.33 

** Also, refer note I 3 
Note : There are no changes in the accounting policies or prior period events during the current year or previous year. 

Below is the nature and purpose of each reserve: 

Securities premium - Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. 
2. Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan - Represents remeasurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax). 
3. Retained earnings - Retained earnings comprises of prior and current period's undistributed earnings after tax. 
4. Amalgamation adjustment deficit account - It represents excess of consideration over carrying value of net assets (including reserves) in case of common control 
business combination. When there is a surplus in the Statement of profit and loss, this debit can be adjusted against that surplus. 

Material accounting policies (refer note 2.2) 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration number: 101248W/W - 100022 

Jt3-JUl 
Siddartha Sharma 
Partner 
Membership number: 118756 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 

~A~~ 
0

Director · 
DIN: 07554053 

Dr. H. Sudarshan Balla! 
Director 
DIN: 01195055 

Khadija G Vahora 
Company Secretary 
Membership number: A37266 

Place : Bengaluru 
Date: May 27, 2025 

Place : Bengaluru 
Date· May 27, 2025 



Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 

A. Cash flows from operating activities 
Profit before tax 
Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Bad debts/ advances written off 
Loss /(Gain) allowance on trade receivables (net) 
Loss allowance on other receivables (net) 
Profit on sale of investments in mutual funds (net) 
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 
Fair value gain on financial instruments at FVTPL 
Finance income 
Finance costs 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Movements in working capital : 

Change in trade receivables 
Change in loans 
Change in other assets 
Change in inventories 
Change in other financial assets 
Change in trade payables 
Change in provisions 
Change in other liabilities 
Change in other financial liabilities 

Cash generated from operations 
Income tax paid (net) 
Net cash generated from operating activities 

B. Cash flow from investing activities 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 
Acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 5.1) 
Investment in other entities 
Loans given to related parties 
Loans repaid by related parties 
Investment made in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) 
Maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) 
Proceeds from the sale of investments in mutual funds 
Purchase of investments in mutual funds 
Interest received 
Net cash used in investing activities 

C. Cash flow from financing activities 
Proceeds of long-term borrowings 
Repayment of long-term borrowings 
Proceeds of borrowings for purchase of capital asset 
Repayment of borrowings for purchase of capital asset 
Interest and processing charges paid 
Interest paid on loan for purchase of capital asset 
Payment of lease obligations 
Interest paid on lease 
Net cash used in financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 10.3) 

Components of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement 

Cash on hand 
With banks - on current accounts 

- deposits with original maturity of less than three months 
Total cash and cash equivalents 

(tin crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

445.54 316.23 

125.63 105.48 
16.07 12.58 
4.76 (0.64) 
0.10 
(3.48) (11.35) 
(0.78) (2.37) 

(13.57) (2.26) 
(6.10) (12.84) 

107 03 114.99 
675.20 519.82 

(45.99) (19.85) 
(0.06) 
0.02 1.32 
(4.10) 0.43 
(0.29) 0.98 

(85.77) 14.26 
(7.29) 2.44 
3. I 7 (0.65) 
0.02 0.12 

534.91 518.87 
(6742) (10990) 
467.49 408.97 

(98.26) (86.45) 
I 73 0.77 

(654.53) 
(0.02) (1.16) 

(314.90) (33.46) 
335.95 259.80 
(1.44) (1.41) 

14.96 
993.26 1,372.83 

(1,317.58) (1,212.47) 
6.09 21.99 

(395.17) (319.13) 

94.24 108.76 
(54.46) (56.63) 
0.45 1.68 
(0.32) (0.32) 

(35.79) (37.66) 
(0.16) (0.11) 
(11.72) (8.17) 
(6029) (57.22) 
(68.05) (49.67) 

4.27 40.17 
60.94 20.77 
65.21 60.94 

1.37 0.92 
33.84 50.02 
30.00 10.00 
65.21 60.94 

Material Accounting policies 2.2 

Refer Note 40 for Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities. 
The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard- 7, «Statement of Cash Flows". 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For BS R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
Finn Registration number · IO 1248W /W - I 00022 

~1.~~;:. . 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 

Partner 
Membership number· 118756 

Director 
DIN: 07554053 

Dr. H Sudarshan Balla! 
Director 
DIN: 01195055 

Khadija G Vahora 
Company Secretary 
Membership number: A37266 

Place . Bengaluru 
Date May 27, 2025 

Place . Bengaluru 
Date May 27, 2025 



Mantpat Hospitals Private Limited 
Notes 10 financial stalemenls for the year ended March 31, 202S 

Corporate information 

Manipal Hospitals Private Limited ("the Company") was established in the year 2003 and commissioned its first operating hospital in the year 2005. The Company is a private limited company incorporated under the 
provisions of the Companies Act of India The registered office of the Company is located at The Annexe, #98/2, Rustam Bagh Road, HAL Airport Road, Bengaluru, 560017. The Company operates through various 
Hospitals/Clinics providing Healthcare services in India. 

2.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements 

(a) Statement of compliance 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to 
time, notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 27, 2025 

Details of the material accounting policies are included in Note 2.2 

(b) Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ff], which is also the Company's functional currency. All amounts are in Indian Rupees If} crores except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated 

(c) Basis of measuremenl 
The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis and the historical cost basis except for the following items: 

hems Measurement 
Certain financial assets and liabilities Refer note 35 Fair value 
Net defined asset / liability Fair value of plan asset less present value of defined benefit obligation 

(d) Use of estimates and judgments 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. 

Judgments, assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes: 

Judgements:- 
Note 14.2 - Leases and lease classification 
Note 15 and 19- Provisions 
Note 16 - Income taxes including deferred tax 
Note 6 and 32 - Provision for Income tax and other contingencies 

Estimates:- 

Note 2.2 (c), (d) and (g) - useful life of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right of use assets 
Note 5.1, 5.2, 10.2, 10.5, 10.6 - Impairment of financials assets and Investment in subsidiaries 
Note 26, 34 - Employee benefits expense, wages and bonus; key actuarial assumptions 
Note 3 5 - Financial instruments 

(e) Measurement of fair values 

The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows: 

- Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e . derived from prices). 
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

When measuring the fair value ofan asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value ofan asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair 
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Company recognises 
transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the note 
35 - financial instruments. 

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies 

(a) [nvestment in subsidiaries 
A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by another entity.The investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost as per IND AS 27. Investment accounted for at cost is accounted for in accordance with IND AS 105 when 
they are classified as held for sale and Investment carried at cost is tested for impairment as per IND AS 36. On disposal of investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or 
credited to the statement of profit and loss. 

(b) Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle. 
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is treated as current when . 
- It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle 
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 
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(c) Property plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, import duties, cost of 
replacing part of the plant and equipment, borrowing costs if the recognition criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its location and condition necessary for the intended use. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price . When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific 
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carry ing amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. AH other repair and 
maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the 
recognition criteria for a provision are met. 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carry inf? amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only ifit is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will now to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably 

Property, plant and equipment under installation or construction as at the balance sheet date is shown as capital work-in-progress and the related advances are shown as under Non current assets 

Depreciation is calculated on a stra ight-line basis over the estimated usefu l lives of the assets as fo llows: 

Category of assets 
Building 
Leasehold improvements 
Equipment's 
Electrical installations 
Furniture and fixtures 
Other fixtures (included in Building) 
Computers 
Vehicles 

Usefu l life estimated by management 
23 - 30 years 
Lease term 

13 years 
7 years 
7 years 
2 years 
3 years 

3-7 years 

Useful life as per Schedule II 
30 years 

NA 
10 - 15 years 

10 years 
10 years 
10 years 

3 - 6 years 
6- \0years 

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of). 
Second hand assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life as per technical estimates. 

Leasehold land/Leasehold improvements/Leasehold Building are depreciated over the primary lease period or useful life, whichever is shorter, on a straight-line basis. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

The management has estimated, supported by technical assessment, the useful life of the category of assets, which are lower than those indicated in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 The management believes that 
these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approx.imation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. 

(d) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impainnent whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the 
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives 
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure fonns part of carrying value of another asset. 
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to 
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
when the asset is derecognised. 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and 
brands, is recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

A summary of amortization policies applied to the Company's intangible assets is as below: 

Category of assets 
Computer software - application 
Computer software - generic 

Useful life estimated by management 
3-5 years 

I year 

(e) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the 
asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is detennined for an 
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, 
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash nows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In detennining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated These budgets and 
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash nows till perpetuity 
For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 
Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impainnent of inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

For all assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the 
Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impainnent loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to detennine the asset's recoverable amount since 
the last impainnent loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been detennined, net of 
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

(I) Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of 
the asset. AU other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds Borrowing cost also 
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 
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(g) Leases 

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

Company as a lessee 

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of 
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. 

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of 
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate 
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any 
accumulated depreciation, accumulated impainnent losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement 
date over the shorter of\ease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation 
is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. Right of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. lmpainnent loss, if any, is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate 
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate.The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, 
residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee 
exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease 
payments made and re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement 
of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to 
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss. 

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short term leases of all assets that have a lock in lease term of 12 months or less, except where it anticipates renewals and leases for which 
the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term 

(h) Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets 
Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables 
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not 
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction 
price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section (i) Revenue from contracts with customers. 

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that arc 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount 
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, 
irrespective of the business model 

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting 
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI arc held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.. the date that the 
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories· 
i) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 
ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments) 
iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments) 
iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 
A 'financial asset' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated 
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The ElR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from 
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 10.2. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derccognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when: 
i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
ii) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in foll without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; 
and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When 
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's 
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company 
has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company 
could be required to repay. 
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Impairment of financi al asset s 

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fa ir value through pro fit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in 
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest ra te. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale 
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual term s 

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are 
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures fo r which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected 
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a life time ECL). 

For trade receivables and other financial assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based 
on life time ECLs at each report ing date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forw ard-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic 
environment. 

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external 
information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in fu ll befo re taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there 
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows 

Financi al liabilit ies 
Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fa ir value through pro fit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as 
appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fa ir value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdra fts and financial guarantee contracts 

Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories: 
• Financial liabilities at fa ir value through pro fit or loss 
• Financial liabilities at amort ised cost (loans and borrowings) 

Financi al liabili ties at fa ir value through pro fi t or loss 

Financial liabilities at fa ir value through pro fit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fa ir value through pro fit or loss 

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred fo r the purpose of repurchasing in the near term . This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not 
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the pro fit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fa ir value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS I 09 are satisfied. For liabilities designated 
as FVTPL, fa ir value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or 
loss within equity. Al l other changes in fa ir value of such liability are recognised in the statement of pro fit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fa ir value through pro fit or loss 

Financi al liabili ties at amort ised cost (Lo ans and borrow ings) 
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amort ised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in 
pro fit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EfR amort isation process 

Am ortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amort isation is included as finance costs in the statement of pro fit 
and loss. 

This category genera lly applies to borrowings. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carry ing amounts is recognised in the statement of pro fit and loss. 

O ffsetti ng of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to sett le on a net 
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

(i) Inventories 

Inventories of pharm acy items and medica l consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item by item basis. Cost of these inventories 
comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location after adjusting for Goods and Serv ices Tax (GST) wherever applicable, applying the first in first out basis. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred to make the sale. Adequate provision is made for slow moving, non-moving and expired inventory , as 
determined necessary . 

(i) Non-current assets held for sale 

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use Such assets, are generally measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. 

Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. 
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(k) Total income 

(i) Revenue recognition 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised as per lnd AS 115, "Revenue from contract with customers", when contro l of the goods or serv ices are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or serv ices, taking into consideration defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. 

Disaggregation of revenue 

The Company disaggregates revenue into revenue from rendering hospital services, pharmacy sales and other operating income. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing 
and uncertainty of Company's revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors. 

Operating Income 
Revenue from Hospital services is recognised as and when the services are performed, unless significant future uncertainties exists, while revenue from sale of pharmacy items is recognised when the control of the goods 
have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. The Company assesses the distinct performance obligations in the contract and measures to at an amount that reflects the consideration it expects to receive, net 
of Goods and Services Tax and adjusted for discounts and concessions 

Contract balances 
Trade receivables 
Unbilled revenue represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of 
financial assets in section (i) Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement. 

Contract liabilities 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods 
or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs its obligation 
under the contract. 

(ii) Other income 

!uterest Income 

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). ElR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the 
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost ofa financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, 
the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is 
included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. 

lnterest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head "finance income" in the statement of profit 
and loss. 

(I) Foreign currencies 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (i.e. the "functional currency") The Company's financial 
statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company's functional and presentation currency. 

Transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average 
rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

(m) Retirement and other employee benefits 

Defined co11lrib11tio11 plan 

Retirement benefit in the fonn of Provident Fund and Pension Fund are defined contribution schemes. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the schemes as an expense, when an employee renders the related 
service. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the fund. 

Defined benefit plan- gratuity 

The Company operates a defined benefit plan for its employees for gratuity. The costs of providing benefits under this plan is detennined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year end using the projected unit credit 
method. 
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are 
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss 
in subsequent periods. 

Past service costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of: 
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment and 
- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs 

Interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the defined benefit liability. The Company recognises the following changes in the defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss: 
(i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements and 
(ii) Interest expense 

Other long-term employee benefits - compensated absences 

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it 
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the 
balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement beyond 12 months after the reporting date 
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(n) Taxes 

Current income tax 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax 
laws used to compute the amounts are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside 
the statement of profit and loss (either in OCI or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions 
taken in the tax returns with respect 10 situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes al the reporting date 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except: 
- where deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit 

nor taxable profit or loss. 
- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is 

probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except: 
- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, 

affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss 
- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the 

temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset 
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit or loss is recognised outside the statement of profit or loss (either in OCI or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and to the same 
taxation authority. 

(o) Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split 
( consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the peri.od adjusted for treasury shares held. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted­ 
average number of equity and dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the period, using the treasury stock method for options and warrants, except where the results would be antidilutive. 

(p) Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is 
recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net off any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

Decommissioning liability 
The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs to dismantle and remove the leasehold improvements from the leased premises. Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of expected costs to 
settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning 
liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as 
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset. 

Onerous contracts 
A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The 
provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made, 
the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract. 

(q) Contingent liabilities 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company 
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability 
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. 

Contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed by the management at each balance sheet date. 

(r) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the 
Company's cash management. 



Manipnl Hospitals Private Limited 

Notes to financial statemen.ts for the year ended March 31, 2025 

(s) Segment accounting policies 

Operating segment are reported in a manner consistent with the internal report ing provided to the Chief Opera ting Decision Maker ("CODM") The Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker. (refer note 38 on segment report ing). 

(t) Corporate Social Respunalbility (CSR) expenditure 

CSR expenditure as per provisions of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Corpora te Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, is charged to the statement of pro fit and loss as an expense as 
and when incurred. 

(u) Cash flow statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net pro fit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferra ls or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 
payments. The cash flows from opera ting, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. Bank overdrafts are classified as part of cash and cash equivalent, as they form an integral part of an entity's 
cash management. 

(v) Share capital 

Equity shares 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity shares are recognised as a deduction from equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction is accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 
12. 

(w) New and amended standards 

(i) Jnd AS 117 Insurance Contracts 
The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notification dated August 12, 2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is 
effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2024. 
Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance 
Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts, regardless of the type of entities that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features; a few 
scope exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model, supplemented by: 
• A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach) 
• A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts 
The application of Ind AS 117 had no impact on the financial statements as the Company has not entered any contracts in the nature of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117 

(ii) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 
The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback. 
The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that 
relates to the right of use it retains. 
The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2024 and must be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 
116. 
The amendment does not have a material impact on the fnancial statements. 

(x) Standards issued but not yet effective 

(i) Ammendment to Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Enhange Rates 
On May 07, 2025, The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2025, which amend Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, to 
specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also require disclosure of information that 
enables users of its financial statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity's financial perfonnance, financial position and cash flows. 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after I April 2025. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative information. 
The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements 



Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31_,_ 2025 

3.1 Property , plant and equipment 
(t in crores) 

Freehold land Leasehold land # Leasehold Buildings Plant and Facility and Furniture Computer Vehicles Electrical Total 
Improvements equipment office and fixtures equipment installation 

equipment and 
equipment 

Cost 
At April 01 , 2023 70.34 18.63 145.37 369.73 465.57 121.98 42.94 53.02 1.55 107.26 1,396.39 
Additions 2.05 3.51 44.89 0.18 3.58 9.88 2.38 5.41 71.88 
Disposals/ adjustments 2.13 (001) (7 13) (2 03) (0 93) (1.53) (0 57) (0 02) (10.09) 
At March 31, 2024 72.47 18.63 147.42 373.23 503.33 120.13 45.59 61.37 3.36 112.65 1,458.18 
Additions 7.10 4.45 70 08 5.74 11.34 1.31 8.49 108.51 
Disposals/ adjustments (0 07) (2.40) (8.08) (7 67) (3 23) (4 12) (0 21) (0 09) (25.87) 
At March 31 , 2025 72.47 18.63 154.4~ 375.28 565.33 112.46 48.10 68.59 4.46 121.05 1,540.82 

Depreciation 
At April 01, 2023 26.98 6.25 150.09 241.93 109.52 37.56 38.14 0.91 60.51 671.89 
Charge for the year 5.92 10.73 29.30 4.66 2.87 8.06 0.31 9.72 71.57 
Disposals/ adjustments (0.01) (6.77) (2.01) (0.91) (1.53) (0.44) (0 02) (11.69) 
At March 31, 2024 26.98 12.17 160.81 264.46 112.17 39.52 44.67 0.78 70.21 731.77 
Charge for the year 6.67 11.51 33.44 4.40 3.17 10.87 0.58 10.36 81.00 
Disposals/ adjustments (0 07) (2.23) (7.39) (7 66) (3.23) (4.06) (0.20) (008) (24.92) 
At March 31, 2025 26.98 18.77 170.09 290.51 108.91 39.46 51.48 1.16 80.49 787.85 

Net book value 
At March 31, 2024 45.49 18.63 135.25 212.42 238.87 7.96 6.07 16.70 2.58 42.44 726.41 
At March 31, 2025 45.49 18.63 135.68 205.19 274.82 3.55 8.64 17.11 3.30 40.56 752.97 

• Refer note 14.1 for details of Property, plant and equipment provided as security for borrowings. 
Notes: 
# Leasehold land represents lease term ranging from 999 years to perpetuity. 
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Mani pal Hospitals Private Limited 
Noles lo financial statements for lhe year ended March 31, 2025 

3.2 Capital Work-in-progress 

(fin crorcs) 
Cost 
At April 011 2023 
Additions during the year 
Transferred to Property, plant and equipment 
At March 311 2024 
Additions during the year 
Transferred to Property, plant and equipments 
Al March 311 2025 

Tolal 
11.34 
70.20 

(71.88) 
9.66 

112.18 
(108.51) 

13.33 

Capital work in progress ageing schedule 

As al March 311 2025 
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 
Projects in progress 
Total 

13.33 13.33 
13.33 13.33 

There are no material capital work-in-progress for which the completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original budget 

As at March 31, 2024 
Particulars Amounl in CWrP for a period of 

Less lhan 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 
Projects in progress 
Total 

5.87 3.49 0.30 9.66 
5.87 3.49 0.30 9.66 

There are no material capital work-in-progress for which the completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original budget. 
" Refer note 14.1 for details of Capital Work-in-progress provided as security for borrowings 

4. i Right of use assets 
(f in crores) 

Righi-of-use assets 
Leasehold land & 

building* 
Equipmenls Vehicles Computers Electrical 

installations 
Total 

Cost 
At April 01, 2023 469.40 16.20 0.68 10.33 
Additions 28.94 5.43 
Disposals or Adjustments (4.14) 
At March 311 2024 498.34 12.06 0.68 15.76 
Additions 3.09 
Disposals (2.35) 
At Ma.ch 31, 2025 499.08 12.06 0.68 15.76 

Depreciation 
At April 01, 2023 85.49 9.12 0.68 5.92 
Charge for the year 19.07 0.93 1.66 
Disposals 
At Ma1·cl1 311 2024 104.56 10.05 0.68 7.58 
Charge for the year 21.47 0.50 5.56 
Disposals (1.95) 
At March 31, 2025 124.08 10.55 0.68 13.14 

Net book value 
At March 31, 2024 393.78 2.01 8.18 
At March 31, 2025 375.00 I.SI 2.62 

"Refer note 14. l for details of assets provided as security for borrowings 

496.61 
34.37 
(4.14) 

526.84 
15.67 18.76 

(235) 
15.67 543.25 

101.21 
21.66 

122.87 
1.67 29.20 

(1.95) 
1.67 150.12 

403.97 
14.00 393.13 



Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

4.2 Intangible assets 
(t in crores) 

Intangible assets 
Computer software 

Cost 
At April 01, 2023 
Additions 
Disposals 
At March 31, 2024 
Additions 
Disposals 
At March 31, 2025 

46.06 
34.36 

80.42 
4.92 
(0.02) 
85.32 

Amortisation 
At April 01, 2023 
Charge for the year 
Disposals 
At March 31, 2024 
Charge for the year 
Disposals 
At March 31, 2025 

Net book value 
At March 31, 2024 
At March 31, 2025 

* Refer note 14.1 for details oflntangible assets provided as security for borrowings. 

29.86 
12.25 

42.11 
15.43 
(0.02) 
57.52 

38.31 
27.80 



Manipal l-lospitals Private Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 202S 

Non-current financial assets 

S.I Investments 

No or units 
March 31, 202S March JI, 2024 

Investments carried at cost (unquoted) 

A) Investment in equity shares or subsidiary company 

Manipal Hospitals (East) India Private Limited ("MHEIPL") (formerly known as AMRI Hospitals Private Limited and AMR! Hospitals 
Limited) 

( shares of~ IO each fully paid-up, refer note 5 .1.1 J 
(A) 

B) Investment in Compulsory convertible debentures ("CCD") of subsidiary company 
MHEIPL 

(refer note 5.1. IJ 
(B) 

Aggregate value of unquoted investments carried at cost (A+B) 

Investments at fair value through Profit and Loss 
Investments in other companies 

02 Renewable Energy X Private Limited 

-Equity shares or, 10 each fully paid up 
-Compulsory convertib le debentures of, I 000 each 
[Refornote5.1.2J 

Atria Wind Power (Basavana Bagewadi) Private Limited 
-Equity shares oft 100 each folly paid up 

(Refer note 5.1.3( (C) 

Investments in mutual funds (quoted)"' (D) 

lnfcrmanon about the company's exposure to credit and market risks, and fair value measurement, is included in Note "35 & 36 
• Refer note 14. I for details of Investments provided as security for borrowings. 
Aggregate value of investments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss (C+D) 

Aggregate value of investments (A+B+C+D) 
Agggregate value or investments 

5,71,12,194 5,71,12,194 

850 850 

(fin crores} 
Amounts 

March JI, 202S March 31, 2024 

396.00 396.00 

396.00 396.00 

314.57 314.57 

314.57 314,57 

710.57 710.57 

1,15,900 1,15,900 0.12 

10,424 10,424 1.04 

1,000 0.02 
1,18 

18.65 

19,83 

730.40 
730.40 

0.12 

1.04 

1.16 

14.95 

16.11 

726.68 
726,68 

5.1.1 On September 20, 2023 the Company along with its affiliates, acquired 5,71, 12,194 equity shares and 850 compulsorily convertible debentures of Manipal Hospitals (East) India Private Limited ("MHEIPL") (formerly known as AMRJ Hospitals 
Private Limited and AMR.I Hospitals Limited) from existing shareholders aggregating to 84.07% shareholding of Manipal Hospitals (East) India Private Limited ("MHEIPL") (formerly kn0\\11 as AMRl Hospitals Private Limited and AMR! 
Hospitals Limited) on a fully diluted basis. 

5.1.2 On October 23, 2023, the Company subscribed to I, 15,900 equity shares and I 0,424 Series 8 compulsory convertible debentures of 02 Renewable Energy X Private Limited as captive power consumer. 

S.I.3 On January 16, 2025 the Company has invested an amount off 0 02 crores in Atria Wind Power (Basavana Bagcwadi) Private Limited by purchasing 1000 equity shares as captive power consumer 

S."2 Loans (Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated) 
(' in crores) 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Inter Corporate Deposit given to related parties (refer note 5.2.1 ) 
Less: Interest accmcd on inter corporate deposits to related parties. disclosed under other non-current financial assets 

12.76 
(0.35) 
12.41 

34.92 
(1.46) 
33,46 

S.2.1 Term of the loan as given below: 
tin crores) 

Name of the loanee Rate of Interest Repayment Secured/ unsecured March 31, 202S Movement during the year March JI, 2024 
MHEIPL 
Inter Corporate Deposit ("ICD") 9.00% Thirty-Six months Unsecured 12.41 (21.05) 33.46 

The intcrcorporate deposit has been made available to MHEIPL for the purpose of meeting its general corporate requirements. 

Provisions of section l 86 or the Companies Act, 20 13, except sub section (I), arc not applicable, as the Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities as specified in Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013. 

5.3 Other financial assets (Secured considered good unless otherwise stated) 

March JI, 2025 
(t in crores) 

March 31, 2024 
Margin money deposit with banks (refer note 5.3.1) 
Deposits wilh banks due to mature after twelve months from the reporting date (refer note 5.3.2) 
Interest accrued on !CD to related parties (refer note 5.3.3) 
Security deposits 

0.60 
7.23 
0.35 

17.42 

0.50 
6.78 
1.46 

15.95 
25.60 24.69 

(5.3.1) Margin money deposits wilh a carrying amount ort 0.60 crores (March 31, 2024: t 0.50 crorcs ) are provided as bank guarantee. 

(5.3.2) It includes Debt Service Reserve Account maintained by the company with Banks amounting to 't" 7.23 crores (March 31, 2024: t 6.74 crores) 
(5.3.3) Receivable from related parties (refer note 31) 

6 Income tax assets (net) 

Income tax assets (net of provision for income tax) 

Other non-current assets (Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated) 

Capital advances 
Considered good 
Considered doubtful 

Less: Provision for doubtful capital advances 

Prepaid expenses 
Balances with statutory/ government authorities 
Defined benefit plan assets (Refer note 34) 

(' in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

11.25 58.64 
11.25 58.64 

(t in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

0.37 2.20 
17.88 17.88 
18.25 20.08 

(17.88) (17.88) 
0.37 2.20 
0.43 0.57 

17.64 
1.68 

20.12 2.77 



Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Assets held for sale 
March 31, 2025 

(fin crores) 
March 31, 2024 

Land 6.50 6.50 
6.50 6.50 

(8.1) Land held for sale pertains to land situated at Mcerut t 6.5 crores (March 3 I, 2024: ? 6.5 crorcs) 
(8.2) As of March 31, 2025, the Company is actively responding to evolving market conditions and ongoing infrastmcture developments in and around Mcerut. Efforts to market the land arc ongoing, with the aim of achieving optimal realisation 
through a potential sale. 

Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value) 
(fin crorcs) 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Pharmacy items 
Medical consumables 

13.43 
17.94 

13.01 
14.26 

31.37 27.27 
Refer note 14.1 for details of Inventories provided as security for borrowings. 

IO Current financial assets 
10.1 Investments 

(fin crores) 
March 311 2025 March 31, 2024 

Investments at fair value throueh Profit and Loss 

Investments in mutual funds (quoted)" 399.07 61.40 
399.07 61.40 

"lnforrnation about the company's exposure to credit and market risks, and fair value measurcmcr.t, is included in Note 35 & 36 
• Refer note 14.1 for details of Investments provided as security for borrowings 

10.2 Trade receivables (Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated) 

(fin erores} 
March 31, 2025 

Considered good 
Credit impaired 

109.47 
19.28 

March 31, 2024 
8431 
14.52 

Less: Loss allowance on trade receivables 
128.75 
(19.28) 
109.47 

98.83 
(14.52) 
84.31 

Refer note 14.1 for details of Trade receivables provided as security for borrowings. 
(10.2.1) There arc no trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk. 
( 10.2.2) Ageing for trade receivables and unbilled revenue due from the due dale for each of Lhe category is as follows: 

As at 31 March 2025 
Particulars Outstandina for fcllowina neriods from due date of navment 

Not due* Less than 6 Months 6 months - I year 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Total 
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered aood 70 09 38.93 0.45 109.47 
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk 
Undisnutcd Trade receivable - credit impaired 9.72 7.18 2.32 0.06 19.28 
Disputed Trade receivables - considered aood 
Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk 
Disputed Trade receivables - credit imoaired 
Total 70.09 48.65 7.63 2.32 0.06 128.75 

• includes unbilled revenue of~ 14.23 crores as considered good. 

As at 31 March 2024 
Particulars Outstandina for followinP neriods from due date of navment 

Not due* Less than 6 Months 6 months - I vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Total 
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered aood 49.35 34.26 0.70 84.31 
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk 
Undisoutcd Trade receivable - credit imoaired 4.25 9.65 0.62 14.52 
Disouted Trade receivables - considered eood 
Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk 
Disoutcd Trade receivables - credit inmaircd 
Total 49.35 38.51 10.35 0.62 98,83 

• includes unbilled revenue of~- 9.53 crores as considered good. 

10.3 Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks: 
- On current accounts 
• Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 
Cash on hand 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

10.4 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

Bank deposits due lo mature within twelve months from the reporting date 

(fin crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

33.84 50.02 
30.00 10.00 
1.37 0.92 

65,21 60.94 

(fin crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

7.90 

7,90 



Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

10.5 Loans (Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated) 

Loans to employees 

I 0.6 Other financial assets (Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated) 

Margin money deposit with banks 
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 
Other receivables# 

Considered good 
Considered doubtful 
Less: Loss allowance on Other receivable 
Net other receivables 

Security deposits 

(~ in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

0.26 0.20 
0.26 0.20 

(~ in crores) 
March JI, 2025 March 31, 2024 

11.10 2.31 
0.42 0.53 

0.60 0.64 
0.28 0.18 
(0.28) (0.18) 
0.60 0.64 

0.40 0.41 
12.52 3.89 

# includes receivables from related parties (refer note 31) 
• Refer note 14.1 for details of Other financial assets provided as security for borrowings 

11 Other assets (Unsecured considered good unless otherwise slated) 
(t in crores) 

March 31, 2025 March JI, 2024 
Prepaid expenses 
Advances to suppliers 
Balance with government authorities 

5.52 
J 68 
1.35 

5.81 
4.97 

. 18.97 
10.55 29.75 

• Refer note 14.1 for details of Other assets provided as security for borrowings. 

(I'his space has been intentionally left blank) 
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12 Equity Share capital 
(t: in crores) 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
12.1 Authorised shares (Nos.) 

I, 104,950,000 (March 3 I, 2024: I, I 04,950,000) Equity shares on JO/- each 1,104.95 1,104.95 

12.2 Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares (Nos.) 
1,025,297,268 (March 31, 2024. 1,025,297,268) Equity Shares on I 0/- each 
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 

1,025.30 1,025.30 
1,025.30 1,025.30 

12.3 Reconciliation of the mnnber of equity shares oulstanding al the beginning and at the end of the reporting year: 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Nos. 

At the beginning of the year 
Add Issued during the year 
At the end of the year 

1,02,52,97 ,268 
(t in crores) 

1,025.30 
Nos. 

1,02,52,97 ,268 
(t: in crores) 

1,025 30 

1,02,52,97,268 1,025.30 1,02,52,97,268 1,025.30 

12.4 Terms/rights attached to equity shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of t.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian 
rupees. The final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting During the year, the Company has not declared any 
dividend. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be 
in proportion to number of equity shares held by shareholders. 

12.5 Shares held by holding company 
(tin crores) 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Nos. 

Mani pal Health Enterprises Private Limited ("MHEPL") • 
(fin crores) Nos. (tin crores) 

I .02,52,97,268 1,025.30 1,02,52,97,268 1,025.30 

"Includes I 0,000 (March 31,2024: 10,000) equity shares of z IO each held by nominee director on behalf of the holding company. 

12.6 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company: 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Number of shares % holding in the 

class 
Number of shares %.1 holding in the 

class 
Equity shares oft IO each fully paid 
Manipa\ Health Enterprises Private Limited 1,02,52,97 ,268 100.00% 1,02,52,97,268 JOO 00% 

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represent both 
legal and beneficial ownership of shares 

12.7 Details of shareholding by the promoter of the company 
As al March 31, 2025 

Promoter Name No. of shares at the Change during the 
beginning of the year year 

Manipal Health Enterprises Private Limited 1,02,52,97 ,268 
1,02,52,97 ,268 

As at March 31, 2024 

Promoter Name No. of shares at the Change during the 
beginning of the year year 

Manipal Health Enterprises Private Limited 1,02,52,97 .268 
1,02,52,97,268 

No. of shares at the end % of Total Shares % change during the 
of the year year 

I ,02,52,97 ,268 100.00% 0.00% 
1,02,52,97,268 100.00% 0.00% 

No. of shares at the end % of Total Shares % change during the 
of the year year 

1,02,52,97 ,268 10000% 0.00% 
1,02,52,97,268 100.00% 0.00% 

12.8 There have been no issue of bonus shares, buy back of shares, issue of shares for consideration other than cash for the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date. 

12.9 As at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the Company does not have any shares reserved for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of shares. 

13 Other equity 

13.1 Securities premium 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add: Addition during the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

13.2 Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
OCl for the year (net of tax) 
Balance at the end of the year 

13.3 Retained earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add: Profit for the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

13.4 Amalgamation adjustment deficit account 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add: Addition during the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

Total of other equity 

(t in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

246.89 246.89 

246.89 246.89 

(0.10) 0.52 
(1.02) (062) 
(1.12) (0.10) 

(292.55) (526.52) 
331.22 233.97 
38.67 (292.55) 

(59.11) (59.1 I) 

(59.11) (59.11) 

(104.87) 
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14 Non-current fornncial liabilities 

14.1 Borrowings (secured unless other-wise stated) 

Borrowings 
Term loan from banks (refer note 14.1 I & 14.1.2) 
Term loan from financial institutions (refer note 14.1.1 & 14.1.2) 
Loan for purchase of capital asset (refer note 14.1.3 & 14.1.4 ) 

(A) 
Less: Current maturities - disclosed under the head 'short term borrowings' 
Term loan from banks 
Term loan from financial institutions 
Loan for purchase of capital asset 

Non- Current Borrowings 

(fin crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

388. IS 427.24 
79.32 
1.99 1.86 

469.46 429.10 

60.37 54.37 
0.70 
0.40 OJI 
61.47 54.68 

407.99 374.42 

(B) 

(A-B) =· ================ 

14.1.1 Details of Principal outstanding, rate of interest and repayment terms for term loans from banks and financial institutions 

As at March 31, 2025 

Particulars Interest Rate Frequency Number of Year of Maturity Principal Outstanding 
structured (net of transaction 

installements cost) 

Secured Term loan (Bank I) 8.19% Quarterly Upto 38 Installments June 30, 2028 69.58 

Secured Term loan (Bank 2) 8.25% Quarterly Upto 36 Installments June 30, 2028 54.48 

Secured Tenn loan (Bank 3) 8.15% Quarterly Upto 48 Installments June 30, 2034 204.09 

Secured Term loan (Bank 4) 8.25% Quarterly Upto 40 Installments March 3 I, 2036 6000 

Secured Term loan (Financial instituion 1) 8.25% Quarterly Upto 80 Installments December 31, 2044 79.32 

As at March 31, 2024 

Particulars Interest Rate Frequency Number of Year of Maturity Principal Outstanding 
structured (net of transaction 

installements cost) 
Secured Term loan (Bank I) 8.65% Quarterly Upto 38 Installments June 30, 2028 91.97 

Secured Term loan (Bank 2) 8.72% Quarterly Upto 36 Installments June 30, 2028 71.78 

Secured Term loan (Bank 3) 8.40% Quarterly Upto 48 Installments June 30, 2034 218.32 

Secured Term loan (Bank 4) 8.50% Quarterly Upto 40 Installments March 31, 2036 45.17 

14.1.2 The terms and conditions of all the term loans from banks and financial institutions are similar and are as follows: 
During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company entered into facility agreement with its lenders and offered consolidated security as below:- 
a) A first ranking pari passu security interest over all movable fixed assets and current assets of the Company along with MHEPL, MHEIPL. Mani pal Hospitals (Dwarka) Private Limited ("MHDPL") and 
Manipal Hospitals (Bengaluru) Private Limited ("MHBPL") including but not limited to movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, intangible assets 
(including goodwill, trademarks and patents) and all other movable properties of whatsoever nature (both present and future) (other than any debt service reserve amounts (including in the form of fixed 
deposits or lien marked mutual funds) or debt service reserve accounts required to be maintained or maintained with respect to the facilities) as per the facility agreement;. 
b) A first ranking pari passu security interest over specific immovable properties of the company, MHEPL, MHEIPL and MHDPL 
c) A first ranking pari passu security interest, by way ofhypothecation, over all leasehold improvements of all immovable properties and excluded properties. 
d) Exclusive security interest over the debt service reserve amounts (including in the form of fixed deposits or lien marked mutual funds) or debt service reserve accounts required to be maintained or 
maintained with respect to such facility) 

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the terms and conditions of all the term loans from banks are as follows: 
a) A first pari-passu charge over all movable, immovable fixed assets and current assets of the Company along with MHEPL, MHDPL, MHBPL & MHEIPL other than fixed Deposits and mutual funds 
kept as DSRA & immovable properties mentioned as excluded properties in facility agreements. 
b) Exclusive security interest over the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Accounts required to be maintained by the company 
c) Irrevocable and unconditional corporate guarantee by MHEPL, MHBPL & MHDPL. Subsequent to the acquisition of MHEIPL during the year March 31, 2024, MHElPL assets are also offered to 
lenders for security. 
d) Non disposal undertaking by MHEPL in respect of each shareholding aggregating up to 100% (One hundred percent) in the company 

14.1.3 Details of Principal outstanding, rate of interest and repayment terms for loan for purchase of capital asset 

Principal outstandiug {t in crores) 
Rate of interest 
Year of repayment 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

1.99 
(8.35% to 9.15%) 

2027 to 2031 

1.86 
(8.6% to 9.40%) 

2027 to 2030 

14.1.4 The Company obtained vehicle under financing arrangements from Bank and secured against such vehicle. 
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14.2 Lease liabilities 
(t in crores) 

Mnrch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Opening balance 
Add: New leases during the yea, 
Add: Interest accrued 
Less: Interest paid 
Less: Lease paid 
Less: Lease termination/adjustments 

569.51 
18.70 
70.11 
(60.29) 
(I 1.72) 
(0.46) 

537.45 
33.40 
66.28 
(57.22) 
(8.17) 
(2.23) 

585.85 569.51 
Non-current 
Current 

574 16 
1169 

558.02 
11.49 

14.2.1 Noles 
The Company has taken on lease certain land and building for hospital operations, hostels for staff, equipment's, office spaces and vehicles for use in the course of its business. 

Refer notes 2.2(g) in relation to accounting policy for leases. 
Refer note 4.1 for depreciation charge for right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset and additions to right-of-use assets and the carrying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting 
period by class of underlying asset. 

Refer note 29.1 in relation to short term leases and leases of low-value assets accounted for applying paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116. 
'Refer note 36C disclosure on maturity analysis of lease payments 
Refer note 40 disclosure on cash outflows for leases liabilities 

15 Provisions 
(fin crores) 

March 3 I, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Non-current 
Provision for gratuity (refer note 7 & note 34) 7.71 

7.71 

16 Income Tax 
The major components of income tax: expense for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are: 

(f in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Statement of Profit and loss: 

Current income tax: 
Current year income tax charge 
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years 

Deferred tax : 
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 
Tax expense reported in the statement of profit 01· loss 

OCI section 
Tax on net loss on remeasurement of defined benefit plan 
Income tax credit reported in OCI 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate: 

Profit before tax 
Statutory income tax rate of25. J 7% (March 31, 2024: 25.17%) 
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 
Impact of statutory tax rate changes on capital gains 
Tax adjustment pertaining to earlier years 

Others 

119.59 92.64 
(348) 0.25 

116.11 92.89 

(1.79) (1063) 
114.32 82.26 

(033) (0.21) 
(0.33) (0.21) 

(tin crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

445.54 316.23 
I 12.13 79.59 

1.18 6.28 
4.22 
(3.48) 

0.27 (361) 
114.32 82.26 

Deferred tax 

(t in crores) 
Recognised in balance sheet Recognised in profit and loss and other 

comprehensive income 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 3 I, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Property plant equipment and Intangible assets: 
Impact of difference between tax depreciation as 
per Income Tax Act, 1961 over depreciation/ 
amortization as per Companies Act, 2013. 

fmpact of expenditure charged to the statement of 
profit and loss in the current year but allowed for 
tax purposes on payment basis • # 
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 
Fair valuation of investments in mutual funds 
Others 
Deferred tax expense (credit) 
Net deferred tax Assets 

(150.17) (150.77) (060) (0.73) 

155.86 152.14 (3.72) (9.13) 

4.92 3.65 (1.27) 0.09 
(4.08) (0.70) 3.38 (0.37) 
10.03 10.12 0.09 (0 70) 

(2.12) (JO 84) 
16.56 1444 

• Includes items under 438 such as Leave encashment, gratuity, bonus. 
# Gratuity amount routed through Other Comprehensive Income pertaining to remeasurement of defined benefit plan 

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows: 

March 31, 2025 
(fin crores) 

March 31, 2024 
Deferred tax assets 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Deferred tax Assets (net) 

170.81 
(154.25) 

165.91 
(15147) 

16.56 14.44 
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17 Current financial liabilities 
17.t Short term borrowings 

Term loan from banks (refer note 14.1 I & 14.1.2) 
Term loan from financial institutions (refer note 14.1 I & 14.1.2) 
Loan for purchase of capital asset(refer note 14.1.3 & 14.1.4) 

17 .2 Trade payables 

Trade payables 
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises- 
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(t in crores) 
March 31, 2025 Mar-ch 31, 2024 

60.37 54.37 
0.70 
0.40 0.31 
61.47 54.68 

(fin crores) 
Mar-ch 31, 2025 Mar-ch 31, 2024 

6.11 5.40 
26889 352.26 
275.00 357.66 

• Also refer note 43 
(17.2.1) For details relating to payable to related parties refer note 31 
( 17.2.2) There were no disputed dues from Micro enterprises and small enterprises and other creditors. 

As at 3 I March 2025 
Outstandlna for following periods from due date of payment 

Not due Less than I year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 
(Including provision 

Particular-s for expense) 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 5.82 0.29 6.11 
small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 226.73 33.19 2.82 3.85 2.30 268.89 
micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro - 
enterprises and small enterprises 
Total 232.55 33.48 2.82 3.85 2.30 275.00 

As at 31 March 2024 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 
(Including provision 

Particulars for expense) Total 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 4.88 0.52 
small enterprises 5.40 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterorises 317.68 27.02 5.71 1.33 0.52 352.26 
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small - 
enterprises 
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro - 
enterprises and small enterprises 
Total 322.56 27.54 5.71 1.33 0.52 357.66 

18 Other financial liabilities 
(tin crores) 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings * 
Capital creditors •• 
Sundry deposits 
Retention money 

0.06 
20.67 
0.33 
1.50 

0.09 
7.11 
0.31 
1.05 

22.56 8.56 

• The details of interest rates, repayment and other terms are disclosed under note 14.1 
** As at March 31, 2025, outstanding amount oft 1.20 crores (March 31, 2024: t. 0.39 crores) is due to micro and small enterprises. There are no interest due or outstanding on the same. There were no 
amounts paid to micro and small enterprises beyond the due date during the current and the previous years. 

19 Provisions 

Current 
Provision for compensated absences 

20 Other current liabilities 

Statutory dues 
Advance received from customer [refer note 22(b)] 

21 Current tax liabilities (net) 

Current tax liabilities (net) 

(t in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

13.07 10.76 
13.07 10.76 

(tin crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

10.86 8.87 
9.31 8.12 

20.17 16.99 

(t in crorcs) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

1.78 0.47 
1.78 0.47 
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22 Revenue from operations 

Hospital services 
Pharmacy sales 
Less: Discounts 
Total (a) 

Other operating revenues 
Rental income 
Parking charges 
Occupational health centre and ambulance service 
Others 
Total (b) 

Total (a+b) 

a) The revenue from contracts with customer at disaggregation is provided above. 
b) Changes in contract liabilities- Advance received from customers 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Less: Revenue recognised that was included in the balance at the beginning of the year (refer note 20) 
Add: Increase due to advance from patients received (refer note 20) 
Balance at the end of the year 

Expected revenue recognition from remaining performance obligations: 
- Within one year 

c) Contract balances 

(f in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

2,129.36 1,821.26 
84.58 62.22 
(76 91) (105.62) 

2,137.03 1,777.86 

2.33 1.82 
0.91 0.53 

10.52 2.59 
2.96 5.01 

16.72 9.95 

2 153.75 I 787.81 

(f in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

8.12 8.57 
(8.12) (8 57) 
9.31 8.12 
9.31 8.12 

9.31 8.12 

(f in crorcs) 
March 311 2025 March 311 2024 

Receivables 
- Trade receivables (refer note 10.2) 

Contract liabilities 
- Advance received from customer (refer note 20) 

Trade receivable are non-interest bearing and are generally on a terms of30 to 120 days. 
Contract liabilities relates to the advances received from the customers to deliver the hospital service There is no significant changes in the contract liabilities 
during the year. 

109.47 8431 

9.31 8.12 

d) The company's performance obligation is lo provide the hospital service to patients, this is part of a contract that has an original expected duration of less than 
one year, hence the company has taken the practical expedient related to performance obligation disclosure as provided by Ind AS 115. 

23 Other income 

Profit on sale of investments in mutual funds (net) 
Fair value gain on financial instruments at FVTPL 
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 
Interest income on income tax refund 

24 Finance income 

Interest on inter corporate deposit • 
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost 
Interest income on bank deposits 

• includes transactions with related parties (refer note 31) 

25 Changes in inventories of medical consumables and pharmacy items 

Pharmacy items 
Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 

Other medical consumables 
Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 

(f in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

3.48 11.35 
13.57 2.26 
0.78 2.37 
1.43 1.26 

19.26 17.24 

(f in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

3.82 10.74 
0.82 0.72 
1.46 1.38 
6.10 12.84 

(f in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

13 01 11.74 
(13.43) (13 01) 
(0.42) (127) 

14.26 15.96 
(17 94) (1426) 
(3.68) 1.70 
(4.10) 0.43 
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26 Employee benefits expense • 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 34) 
Gratuity expenses (refer note 34) 
Staff welfare expenses 

• includes transactions with related parties (refer note 31) 
27 Finance costs 

Bank charges 
Interest 

- on bank loan 
- on defined benefit obligation (refer note 34) 
- on leases 
- on vehicle loan 
- on self-assessment tax 
- on others 

Loan processing fees 
- on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

Total finance costs 

28 Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3.1) 
Depreciation ofright of use assets (refer note 4.1) 
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4.2) 

29 Other expenses 

Doctors professional fees 
House keeping, including consumables 
Power and fuel and other utilities 
Security charges 
Rent (refer note 29.1) 
Contractual manpower 
Rates and taxes 
Insurance 
Repairs and maintenance 
- Buildings 
- Plant and machinery 
- Others•• 
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 39) 
Advertising and sales promotion•• 
Travelling and conveyance 
Communication costs 
Printing and stationery 
Legal and professional fees•• 
Payment to auditors 
Bad debts/advances written off 
Loss allowance on trade receivables (net of reversals) 
Loss allowance on other receivables (net ofreversals) 
Foreign exchange loss (net) 
Miscellaneous expenses 

(t in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

216.90 180.14 
14.27 12.40 
3.04 2.52 
6.76 14.65 

240.97 209.71 

(t in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

9.86 8.71 

35.57 34.53 
0.54 0.46 

70.11 66.28 
0.16 0.11 
0.01 0.13 

1159 

0.64 1.89 
107.03 114.99 
116.89 123.70 

(t in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

80.99 71.57 
29.21 21.66 
15.43 12.25 

125.63 105.48 

(t in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

515.05 438.84 
26.04 24.09 
35.07 35.34 
13.38 12.06 
22.18 19.24 
62.33 39.25 
309 1902 
3.98 2.93 

1.59 2.16 
19.06 17.94 
36.14 25.10 
4.59 2.45 

80.39 60.86 
8.16 6.08 
1.61 2.21 
6.59 6.57 

21.72 16.44 
0.89 1.06 

16.07 12.58 
4.76 (0.64) 
0.10 0.00* 
0.98 0.10 
3.18 2.95 

886.95 746.63 
• Represents value less than t. 0.01 crore 
•• includes transactions with related parties (refer note 31) 

29.l Represents amounts incurred by the Company towards expenses relating to short-term leases, leases of low-value assets and ineligible GST on lease payments 
written off. Also refer note 2.2(g). 

29.2 Payment to auditors" 
(t in crores) 

March 31, 2025 March 3 I, 2024 
Audit fees 0.89 1.06 

0.89 1.06 
*Amount inclusive of Goods and Service Tax (GST). 
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30 Earnings per share (EPS) 
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

March 31, 2025 
(~ in crores) 

March 31, 2024 
Profit attributable to the equity shareholders for basic EPS 331.22 233.97 

Weighted average number of equity shares 
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted - ~ 

1,02,52,97 ,268 
3.23 

1,02,52,97 ,268 
2.28 

31 Related party transactions 

(a) Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not: 

Holding Company - Manipal Health Enterprises Private Limited ('MHEPL') 

Subsidiary - Manipal Hospitals (East) India Private Limited ('MHEIPL') (formerly known as AMRI 
Hospitals Private Limited and AMR! Hospitals Limited) (w.e.fSeptember 20, 2023) 

(b) Names of other related parties as per Ind AS 24 with whom transactions have taken place during the year: 

Fellow subsidiaries - Manipal Hospitals (Dwarka) Private Limited ('MHDPL') 
- Manipal Hospitals (Bengaluru) Private Limited ('MHBPL') 
•· Healthmap Diagnostics Private Limited 

Other related parties - Manipal Cigna Health Insurance Company Limited 
(Enterprises under significant influence of ultimate holding - Manipal Foundation 
company/holding company upto July 13, 2023) - MEMG International India Private Ltd 

- UNext Leaming Private Limited 
(Enterprise over which Key management personnel ("KMP") of holding - Mani pal Academy of Higher Education 
company has significant influence from July 13, 2023) 

(c) Names of other related parties as per Ind AS 24 with whom transactions have not taken place during the year: 

Key management personnel: - Dr. H. Sudarshan Ballal, Director 
- Mr. Karthik Rajagopal, Director 
- Mr. Sameer Agarwal, Director 

(d) Names of additional related parties as per Companies Act, 2013: 

KMP: Company Secretary - Ms. Khadija G Vahora 

Transactions with the above related parties during the year ended: 

Name of related a 
Remuneration to key mana ement ersonnel (KMP) 
Manipal Health Enterprises Private Limited 

Manipal Academy of Higher Education 

Mani alCi 'Ila Health Insurance Com an Limited 
Manipal Hospitals (Dwarka) Private Limited 

MEMG International India Private Ltd 

Manipal Foundation 

~ in crores) 
Nature of transaction March 31, 2025 March 3 I, 2024 
Employee Benefits 0.20 0.11 
Hospital Services received 9.85 12.93 
Hospital Services rendered 2.28 1.56 
Purchase of medical pharmacies/consumables 1.80 1.67 
(net of returns) 
Sale of medical pharmacies/consumables (net 0.26 0.26 
of returns) 
Reimbursement of Expenses incurred on behalf 225.23 206.78 
of the company 
Recovery of expenses incurred on behalf of 3.16 17.71 
other company 
Amount received from related party 2000 
Amount paid to related party 262.04 198.92 
Sale of asset 0.06 
Hospital Services rendered I.II 
Amount received from related party 1.19 
Insurance expenses 2.34 1.81 
Interest Income on !CD 9.12 
!CD repayment received the year 259.80 
Interest Income received on !CD repayment 19.54 
Amount paid to related party 0.08 
Amount received from related party 0.11 
Recovery of expenses incurred on behalf of the 
related party 0.13 0.08 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf 
of the Company 0.04 0.13 
Royalty charges (included wider legal and 10.77 8.66 
professional expense) 

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure 4.59 
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Manipal Hospitals (Bengaluru) Private Limited Purchase of Asset 0.04 0.01 
Purchase of medical pharmacies/consumables 0.08 
(net of returns) 
Amount paid to related party 3.36 - 
Hospital Services rendered 1.37 
Hospital Services received 0 00 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf 3.64 3.14 
of the Related party 
Recovery of expenses incurred on behalf of the 0 07 1.88 
related party 

Manipal Hospitals (East) India Private Limited (formerly known as Investment in equity shares - 396.00 
AMR! Hospitals Private Limited and AMRI Hospitals Limited) Investment in CCD - 314.57 

!CD given during the year 314.90 

!CD repayment received the year 335.95 

Interest Income received on !CD repayment 4.54 - 
Interest Income on !CD 3.82 1.62 
Purchase of medical pharmacies/consumables 0.11 - 
(net of returns) 
Sale of medical pharmacies/consumables (net 0.04 - 
ofretums) 

Amount paid to related party 0.68 

Amount received from related party 0.02 

Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf 0.29 
of the Company 
Recovery of expenses incurred on behalf of the 0.59 
related party 

Hospital Services rendered 0.18 0.05 
Hospital Services received 1.83 0.09 

UNext Leaming Private Limited Hospital Services rendered 0.02 

Amount received from related party 0.01 - 
Healtlunap Diagnostics Private Limited Hospital services received 0.80 . 

Balances receivable from/payable to related parties are as follows: 

Name of related party Nature of balances March 3 I, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Manipal Health Enterprises Private Limited Trade Payables 7.03 17.01 
ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited Prepaid expenses . 1.78 

Advance to Suppliers 0.11 . 

Manipal Foundation Trade Payables 0.07 
Manipal Hospitals (Dwarka) Private Limited Other receivables 0.01 0.03 
MEMG International India Private Limited Trade Payables 4.32 1.78 
Manipal Academy of Higher education Other receivables 0.18 
Manipal Hospitals (Bengaluru) Private Limited Other receivables . 0.02 

Trade Payables 0.56 1.26 
Manipal Hospitals (East) India Private Limited (formerly known as !CD 12.41 33.46 
AMR ! Hospitals Private Limited and AMR! Hospitals Limited) Interest accrued on !CD 0.35 1.46 

Trade Payables 0.84 0.04 
UNext Leaming Private Limited Other receivables 0.02 
Healthmap Diagnostics Private Limited Trade payables 0.01 . 

(t in crores) 

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
The sales/purchases, income/expenses, loans from/to related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm' s length transactions. During the current and 
previous years, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial 
year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 
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32 Contingent liabilities 

(A) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 
i) Patient Compensation 
ii) Indirect Tax 

Goods and Service Tax 
Finance Act, 1994 

(B) Guarantees 
i) Bank guarantees 

(? in crores) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

241 345 

17.26 10.83 
I l.40 1140 

0.21 043 
31.28 26.11 

(i) Patient Compensation 
There are certain claims made against the Company in respect of patient compensation. The cases are pending with various Consumer Disputes Redressal 
Commissions. Based, on the legal counsel's views, the management does not expect these claims to succeed. Accordingly, no provision for liability has been 
recognized in the financial statements. 

The Company is confident that its position will be upheld for above litigations and accordingly no provision has been made in the Financial Statements. 

(ii) Indirect Tax Demand 

Goods and Service Tax 

(a) The Company went in for Advance Ruling seeking clarification on chargeability ofGST on activities performed by its employees at the Corporate office in the 
course of or in relation to employment viz., accounting, other administrative and IT system maintenance for its units located in states outside of the Karnataka. 
The Authority for Advance Ruling passed an order calling it as supply and hence chargeable to GST Aggrieved by the order, the company appealed against the 
said order with the Appellate Authority of Advance Ruling (AAAR) which again passed the order in favour of Revenue. Aggreived by the order passed by 
AAAR, the Company has filed a writ petition with the Hon'ble high court of Karnataka on April 26, 2019 to quash the said order. Fresh Interlocutory 
Applications, challenging the validity of constitution of AAR/ AAAR was listed for hearing in April 202 L The matter was heard and the respondents (Union and 
State) were directed to file objections. Expected liability as on March 31, 2025 is t. 12.38 crores (As on March 31, 2024: ~. 10.71 crores). 

(b) During the year 2016-17, while filing TRAN-!- Transitional !TC for CENVAT Credit and Value assed Tax (VAT) credit, the Company has inadvertently 
claimed SGST credit in TRANS-! amounting to ~.047 crores while there was no VAT credit available to be transitioned to Goods and Service Tax (GST). Upon 
realizing its mistake, the Company has voluntarily remitted back the same amount. Subsequently, the department issued notice for difference in credit claimed as 
per Tran I and VAT returns and has demanded interest of ~. 0.07 crores and penalty of' t. 0.05 crores as applicable under KGST Act. The Company has 
thereafter made payment of the interest in 2021. Considering the above fact, that the Company has already remitted the impugned amount even before the 
authorities identified along with the interest, the company believes it has a good case and the penalty imposed would be set aside. 

( c) During the year ended March 31, 2025, the company has received an order issued by Joint Commissioner for the period March 2021 to September 2022, 
wherein GST demand of ~. 2.38 crore and equal amount of penalty with interest is raised towards Non- Payment of GST on Supply of COVID-19 vaccines and 
its related vaccination charges. Aggrieved by the impugned order, subsequent to the year end, the Company has filed a Writ before Hon 'ble High Court of 
Karnataka and obtained the stay. 

Finance Act, 1994 

(a) Commissioner, Central Tax (Audit-I, Commissionerate) has issued show cause notice no.54/2020-21 CTA-1/Commr. dtd. December 30, 2020 towards non­ 
reversal ofCenvat credit/non-payment of Service Tax payable under provisions of Rule 6 of the Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 in respect of exempted services for the 
period from October I, 2014 to June 30, 2017 for an amount of~. I 0.10 crores including interest and penalty. The Company has remitted the tax amount of~. 
3.55 crores under protest and filed response to the notice before the Principal Commissioner/ Commissioner of Central Tax, East Commissionerate on February 
26, 202 L The authorities vide 010 No. 57 /2021 dt. November 30, 2021 confirmed the aforesaid demand including interest and penalty. Aggrieved by the 
impugned order, the Company has filed the appeal with CEST AT on April 18, 2022 

(b) Deputy Commissioner, Circle IV, Central Tax (Audit-I, Commissionerate) has issued show cause notice 11047/2020-21 CTA-1/Dy Commr. dtd. December 
18, 2020 towards non-payment of Service Tax under reverse charge on services received from Director of the Company payable under Section 68(2) of the 
Finance Act, 1994 for an amount of~. l.30 crores (March 31, 2024: ~. l.30 crores) including interest and penalty. The Company has filed its response to the 
show cause notice before the Deputy/ Assistant Commissioner of Central Tax East division -5, Bangalore East Commissionerate on January 18, 202 L The 
authorities vide 010 No. 199/2022 dt. March 31, 2022 confirmed the aforesaid demand including interest and penalty. Aggrieved by the impugned order, the 
Company has filed the appeal with Commissioner of Service Tax(Appeals) on June 16, 2022 and remitted the tax amount on. 0.31 crores under protest. 

Based on the discussions, the Company had with the tax experts, they are of the view that the Company has good case on merits and has higher probability of 
winning the above cases, both under GST and Finance Act. Accordingly, it has been disclosed as a contingent liability. 

(iii) The Company along with MHEPL, MHBPL, MHDPL and MHEIPL have provided security to various lenders in the form of first ranking pari passu charge over 
Immovable properties including lease hold improvements, Movable Fixed Assets, Intangibles assets and Current Assets (as defined in the Facility Agreements) 
for the term loans amounting to t. 4,663.53 crore (March 31 2024: ~. 3,883.13 crores) availed by the Company, MHEPL, MHBPL, MHDPL, HCMCT (Silo), 
MHEIPL and Mani pal Hospitals Eastern India Private Limited ('MH Eastern') 

Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above as it 
is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/authorities. 

\\a\s Pr., 
73.67 crores (March, 31 2024: ~. 61.90 crores) 0[BC:J~ /1,..~ 
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34 Employee benefit plan 

(i) Defined contribution plan: 
Amount recognised and included in note 26, Contribution to provident and other funds in statement of profit and loss oft 14 27 crorcs (March 31, 2024· t 12.40 crorcs). 

(ii) Defined benefit plan: 
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan Under this plan, every employees who arc entitled as per the Gratuity Act, gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The 
gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to funds maintained with an insurance company. 

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and amounts recognized in the balance sheet. 

a) Statement or profit and loss and other comprehensive income 

i) Net employee benefit expense recognized in the statement or profit or loss 
Current service cost 

Interest cost on benefit obligation 

Expected return on plan assets 
Net benefit expense charged to statement of profit or loss 

ii) Remeasurement 
Actuarial changes arising from changes in­ 

-Financial assumptions 
-Demographic assumptions 

-Expcricncc adjustments 

Return on plan assets excluding interest income 

Total amount recoenised in other comprehensive income 

b) Balance Sheet 
Defined benefit obligation 
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 
Unfunded status 
Net defined benefit (asset)/liability 
Non current 
Current 
Plan (assetj/liability 

c) Change in projected benefit obligations 

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the rear 
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Benefits paid 
Remeasurement of gain in other comprehensive income: 
Actuarial changes arising from changes in: 

-Financial assumptions 

-Demographic assumptions 

-Expcricncc adjustments 

Liabilities settled on account of intergroup transfer 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 
Obligations at end or the year 

d) Movemrnts in the fair value or plan assets are as follows 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 
Interest income 
Actuarial gainl(loss) on plan assets 
Contribution paid into the plan 
Benefits paid 
Fair value of plan assets at the end or the year 

Defined plan asset 

Plan assets consist of assets held in a "long-tenn benefit fund" for the sole purpose of making future benefit payments when they fall due Plan assets include qualifying insurance policies and are not quoted in the market. 

(fin crores) 
March JI, 2025 March JI, 2023 

3.04 2.52 

0.90 0.80 

{0.36) (0.34) 

3.58 2.98 

0.75 038 

0.29 

0 43 0.49 

(0.12) (0.04) 

1.35 0,83 

15.92 12.75 
17.60 5.04 
(1.68) 7.71 
(1.68) 7.71 
(1.68) 7.71 

(1.68) 7.71 

7.71 6.43 
5.04 4.66 
J.Q4 1.52 
0.90 0.80 
(1.15) (2.53) 

0.75 0.38 

0.29 

0.43 0.49 
(0.69) 

{17.60) (5.04) 
(1.68) 7.71 

5.04 4.66 
0.36 0.34 
0.12 0.04 

13.63 2.53 
(1.55) (2.53) 
17.60 5.04 

The Company expects to pay t 0.50 crore in contributions to its defined benefit plans in 2025-26 

e) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity liability for the Company's plan are shown below: 

Discount rate 
Increase in compensation cost 

Retirement Age 

6.70% 
6.00% 

60 rears 

7.20% 
6.00% 

60 rears 

Em levee turnover 
Age (Years) Rate (p.a.) 

March 31 2025 March 31 2025 
21 - JO 
JI - 34 
35 -44 
45 - 50 
51 - 54 
55 - 59 

24.63% 
I0.17% 
8.34% 
2.87% 
1.63% 
3.92% 

Age (Years) Rate (p.a.) 
March JI 2024 March 31 2024 

21 -JO 24.04% 
JI -34 5.81% 
35 - 44 4.73% 
45 - 50 0.75% 
51 -54 0.10% 
55 -59 0.03% 

Mortality rates arc as per Indian Assured lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult [March 31, 2024: Indian Assured lives Mortality (2012-14} Ult.} 

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuatial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

Sensitivity analysis 
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation as shown below: 

March JI 2025 March Jl 2024 
0.5o/o Increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5% Increase 0.5% Decrease 

Discount rate (4.70%} 5.09% (5.79%} 6.34% 
Future salary growth 5.10% (4.75%) 6.39% (5.88%) 
The sensitivity analyses above have been dctennined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuning at the end of the reporting 
period. 

Maturitv profile or defined benefit obliaation: 

Within I year 

verage duration of the defined benefit planned obligations at the end of the reporting period is 9. 78 years ( March 31, 2024 : 12.11 years) 

5.29 
5.05 

24.39 

March 31, 2024 
0.67 
3.33 
3.75 

29.94 
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35 Fair values and hierarchy 

Accounting classification and fair value of financial instruments is as follows. The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the 
fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique: 

Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. 
derived from prices). 

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between 
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value: 
- The fair value of the quoted mutual funds are at Level I of Fair value hierarchy and are measured based on Net Asset Value (NA V) in active markets at the 
reporting date. 

- The fair value of the financial assets (other than mutual funds) and financial liabilities were based on amortised cost at the reporting date. 

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities of the Company: 

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy valued as at March 31, 2025: 

March 31, 2025 Level I Level 2 Level3 
(a'. in crores) 
Total 

Financial assets (at FVTPL) 
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) (non-current) 
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) (current) 

18.65 
399.07 

11!.65 
399.07 

417.72 417.72 

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy valued as at March 31, 2024: 

----------------------------- _.(t_in er-ores) 
Total March 31, 2024 Level 1 Leve12 Level 3 

Financial assets (at FVTPL) 
Investment in mutual funds ( quoted) (non-current) 
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) (current) 

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments: 

As at March 31, 2025 

Financial assets: * 

Investment in mutual funds (quoted) (non-current) 
Loans (non-current) 
Other Financial assets (non-current) 
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) (current) 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Loans ( current) 
Other fmancial assets (current) 

Financial liabilities: 
Borrowings (includes current maturities of long-term borrowings) 
Lease liabilities (Non-current and current) 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities ( current) 

14.95 
61.40 

14.95 
61.40 

76.35 76.35 

(t in crores) 

Note Carrying value 
FVTPL Amortised Cost Total 

5.1 
5.2 
5.3 
10.1 
10.2 
JO 3 
10.5 
10.6 

18.65 
12.41 
25.60 

399.07 
109.47 
65.21 
0.26 

12.52 

i8.65 
12.41 
25.60 

399.07 
109.47 
65.21 
0.26 

12.52 
417.72 225.47 643.19 

14.1 
14.2 
17.2 
18 

469.46 
585.85 
275.00 
22.56 

469.46 
585.85 
275.00 
22.56 

1,352.87 1,352.87 
* excludes investment in equity instruments 
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As at March 31, 2024 

Financial assets: * 
Investment in mutual funds ( quoted) (non-current) 
Loans (non-current) 
Other financial assets (non-current) 
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 
Loans ( current) 
Other Financial assets (current) 

Financial liabilities: 
Borrowings (includes current maturities of long-term borrowings) 
Lease liabilities (Non-current and current) 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities ( current) 

(~ in crores) 

Note 
Carrying value 

FVTPL Amortised Cost Total 

5. l 14.95 14.95 
5.2 33.46 33.46 
5.3 I 24.69 24.69 
IO.I 61.40 61.40 
10.2 84.31 84.31 
10.3 60.94 60.94 
10.4 7.90 7.90 
10.5 0.20 0.20 
10.6 3.89 3.89 

76.35 215.39 291.74 

14.1 429.10 4'./9.10 
14.2 569 . .51 569.51 
17.2 357.66 357 . .56 
18 8.56 8.56 

1,364.83 1,364.83 
* excludes investment in equity instruments 

The Company does not have any financial instruments which are measured at FVTOCI 

There have been no transfers among Level I, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended March 31, 2025 and year ended March 31, 2024 

The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables 
and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 
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36 Financial risk management 

The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's 
principal financial assets include loans, investments, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its operations 

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's management oversees the management of these risk and works towards minimizing the potential adverse effects, if 
any, on its financial performance. 

A. Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises interest rate risk and currency rate risk. Financial 
instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, payables, investments and deposits . The sensitivity analyses in the fo llowing sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 
2024. The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. Th is is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as of March 31, 2025 
and March 3 I, 2024. 

(i) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value 01 future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates The Company's exposure to the risk of changes ir1 market 
interest rates relates primarily to the Company's debt obligations with floating interest rates in fonn of Term loans. 

Exposure to interest rnte risk 
The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments are as follows 

Fixed rate instruments 
Financial asset 
Margin money deposits with banks 
Bank deposits due to mature within twelve months from the reporting date 
Deposits with banks due to mature afler twelve months from the reporting date 
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 

Variable rate instruments 
Financial asset 
ICD given to related parties 
Investments in mutual funds (quoted) 

(tin cro!~ 
March JI, 2023 March 31, 2024 

11 70 :!.&I 
7 90 

7.23 6.78 
30.00 -..0.00 

~~t 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 20'U 

12.41 3'l 46 
417.72 '/6.35 

Financial linbilily 
Borrowings (non-current and current) 469.46 429 10 

Sensilivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 
Based on the closing balance of variable instruments, an increase/ decrease in interest rate by 1%, with all other variables remaining constant would result in increase/ decrease in interest cost by~ 0.49 crores 
(year ended March 3 I, 2024. Z. 0 27 crores) 

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 
Based on the closing balance of van able instruments, an increase/ decrease in interest rate by I%, with all other variables remaining constant would result in rncrease/ decrease in mtereat cos'. by ~ 0.J9 crorcs 
(year ended March JI, 2024: ~ 5 39 crorcs) 

(ii) Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wi11 fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure ~o the nsk of changes in 
foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) 

Particulars of unhcdgcd foreign currency exposure as at lhe reporting date: 

------- ----- 
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

USD (million) I (fin crores) I EUR(million) I (fin crores) USD million I (t in_ nores) - 0.03 I 0.30 I 0.70 I 5.70 0.06 I 0.48 Capital creditors 
Capital advances I I I 0.01 I 0.04 

Foreign currency risk sensitivity 
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible 
change in USO exchange rates, with all other variables held constant- 

Depreciation of fNR against USO by i % results in decrease in profit before rux by~ 0.01• crores (March JI, 2024: Nil) and appreciation of INR against USO by I% results in increase by such amount. 

i3, Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk anses principally from its trade receivables. cash 
and cash equivalents and financial assets 

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit The collection fro:n the 
trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the management 

(i) Trade and other receivables: 
The Company establishes an allowance for impainnent that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables based on the past and the recent collection trend. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to t 108.61 crores (March 31, 2024 ~ 84. I 3 crores) The movement III allowance for impairment in respect of trade and 
other receivables during the year was as follows· 

March 31, 2025 
(t in crores) 

March 31, 2024 
Opening balance 
Loss allowance on trade receivables (net of reversals) 
Closing balance 

14.52 
4.76 

14.87 
(0 !5) 

19.28 14.52 

There is no significant concentration of credit risk and no single customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of March 31, 2025 and March 31,2024. 

(ii) Financial instruments and deposits: 

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments of surplus 
funds, temporarily, are made only with approved counterparties who meet the minimum threshold requirements under the counterparty risk assessment process. 
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C . Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter diffi culty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's 
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. Also, the Company has unutilized credit limits with banks. 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on undiscounted contractual payments: 

Borrowings (includes current maturities of long-term borrowings) 
Lease liabilities (non-current and current) 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities (current) 

Borrowings (includes current maturities oflong-tenn borrowings) 
Lease liabilities (non-current and current) 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities (current) 

(tin crores) 
March 31, 2025 

Less than I year More than I year Total 
98.18 590.20 688.38 
72.57 2,009.62 2,082. I 9 

275.00 275.00 
22.56 22.56 

March 31, 2024 
Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total 

89.62 505.84 595.46 
68.86 2,062.13 2,130.99 
357.66 357.66 

8 56 8.,6 

37 A Capital management 

The primary objective of Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an optimum financing structure and healthy returns in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value. 

fhe Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments, in light of the changes in economic conditions or business requirements. 

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio whirh is net debt divided h_y total equity plus net debt as shown below 
- Net debt includes borrowings, lease liabilities (non.current and current) less cash anri cash equivalents and 
- Total equity comprises of issued share capital and ?.II other equity components attributable to equity share holder. 

Borrowings (note 14.1) 
Lease liabilities (note 14.2) 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 10.3) 
Less: Investment 111 mutual funds (quoted) (refer note 5 1 &. 10 1) 
Net debt (A) 

March 31, 2025 
469.46 
585 85 

(tin crcres} 
March 31, 2024 

--429i~ 
569.51 

(65.21) (60 '."i) 
_____ (~4=17.n) (76.:;,J 

572.1R 861.32 

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company (note 12 and r.otc :3) 

Total capital (B) 

Capital and net debt (C " A+B) 

! ,250.63 9:/0.43 
1,150.t:3 ---•"i°0.43- 

------------·-·----- 
1,781.7~ 

Gearing ratio (D = A .' ,_~) 31% 48% 

378 During the year ended March 31, 'W23, the Income tax department conducted ? search under section 132 of the fncorr:e tax Act, I 961 at the registered oflice of the Company and one hospital location. During the 
course of the search proceedings, certain information and documents were sought by the department. On March 29, 2024, Company has received the assessment order comprising demand u/s : )6 of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961 for the Assessment Year (A Y) 2019-20 amounting to Rs I .68 c-orc {iuciuding interest) & for A Y 2022-23 amounting to Rs. NIL towards disallowance of certain expenses. Ori March J, 2 l?:5, 'he 
Company has received assessment order with respect of above mentioned mailer, comprising demand l1/s I )6 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for A Y 2020-21 amounting ·10 Rs. 0.39 crore(inclu-:lir.g i,·t:rest}, fc r A Y 
2021-22 amounting !o Rs NIL and for A Y ?OlJ--24 amounting to Rs 0 67 cro-edncluding interest) towards disa\lowance of certain expenses. fhe company has filed an appeals with CIT (A} 

The Company is confident that its position will be upheld for above income rax 'rtigations and accordingly no provision has been made in the financial statements 

IThis space has been intentionally left blank) 
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38 Segment information: 

The Board of Directors of the Compan y has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by lnd AS I 08, Opera ting Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company's perfo rmance and allocates 
resources bas ed on an analysis of healthcare services in India 

TI1e Company is primarily engaged in a single segment (business and geographical) i.e., Healthcare services in India. As the Company's business activity primarily falls within a single business and geographical segment, there 
are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of Ind AS I 08 on 'Operating Segments'. 

39 Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') expenditure 

Consequent to the requirements of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to contribute 2% of its average net profits during the immediately three preceding financial years in 
pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. 

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is t 4.59 crores (March 3 I, 2024: f 2.45 crore). 

(b) Amount spent 
Promoting healthcare, education, gender equality, ensuring environment sustainability, training for rural sports and rural development objects. 

Year ended March 31, 2025 
Year ended March 31, 2024 

(c) Details related to spent/ unspent obligations: 

(i) Contribution to Public Trust 
(ii) Contribution to Charitable Trust (refer note 31) 
(iii) Unspent amount in relation to: 

- Ongoing project 
- Other than ongoing project 

fin erures 
In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total 

4.59 4.59 
2.45 2.45 

(f in croresi 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

4.59 2.45 

4.59 us 

Details of other than ongoing project 

As on March 31, 2025 

Opening balance 
Amount deposited in Specified 

Fund of Sch. vii within 6 months 
Amount required to be 
spent during the year 

Amount spent during the year Closing balance 

4.59 4.59 

As on March 3 l, 2024 

Opening balance 
Amount deposited in Specified 

Fund of Seit vii within i5 months 
Amount required to be 
spent during the year 

Amount spent during the year Closing balance 

2.45 2.45 

i0 Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financial liabilities 

Debt as at April 01, 2024 
lnterest accrued but not due as at March 3 I, 2024 
Addition during the year 
Cash flows including interest paid 
• Repayment of borrowings 
• Interest paid 
Non-cash changes 
- Lease termination/adjustments 
- lnterest expense 
lnterest accrued but not due as at March 31, 2025 
Debt as at March 31, 2025 

Debt as at April 01, 2023 
Interest accrued but not due as at March 31, 2023 
Addition during the year 
Cash flows including interest paid 
- Repayment of borrowings 
• Interest paid 
Non-cash changes 
- Lease termination/adjustments 
- Interest expense 
lnterest accrued but not due as at March 31, 2024 
Debt as at March 31, 2024 

Term loans Lease liability Loan for purchase of 
capital asset 

427.24 569.51 1.86 
0.09 

94.24 18.70 0.45 

(51.46) (11.72) (032) 
(15 79) (60 29) (0.16) 

(0.46) 
36.21 70.11 0 16 
0.06 

467.47 585.85 1.99 

Term loans Lease liability Loan for purchase of 
capital asset 

375.11 537.45 0.50 
1.33 

108.76 33.40 1.68 

(56.63) (817) (0.32) 
(37.66) (57.22) (0.11) 

(2.23) 
36.42 66.28 0 11 
(O.Q9) 

427.24 569.51 1.86 

fin crores) 
Total 

998.61 
9M 

113.39 

(66.56) 
(96.24) 

(0.46) 
106.48 
0.06) 

L,055.31 

Total 

913.06 
1..33 

143.84 

(65.12) 
i94.99) 

(2.23) 
102.81 
(0.09) 

998.61 

41 Below are the details of subsidiary along with proportion of ownership interest held and country of incurperation 

Investment in subsidiary: 

Name of the Company Country of Percentage of ownership interest held (directly and 
Incorporation indirectly) and voting rights held as at 

March 31 2025 I March 31 2024 

MHEIPL India 84.07%1 84.07% 



Manipal Hospitals Private Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

42 Accounting ratios 

i) Current ratio 
The current ratio is used to assess a company's short term liquidity. It is calculated by dividing the current assets by current liabilities 

ii) Debt-equity ratio 
"Total debt" is defined as aggregate of non-current borrowings and current maturities of long term-borrowings and total equity includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. 

iii) Debt service coverage ratio 
The Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) measures the ability of a company to use its operating income to repay all its debt obligations, including repayment of principal and interest on both short-term and long-term debt ft 
is calculated by dividing net operating income by the total debt service (Interest and principal) 

iv) Return on equity ratio 
Equal to profit for the year divided by the equity during that period, and is expressed as a percentage 

v) Inventory turnover ratio 
Inventory turnover indicates the rate at which a company sells and replaces its stock of goods during a particular period. The inventory turnover ratio formula is the cost of goods sold divided by the average inventory for the 
same period. 

vi) Trade receivables turnover ratio 
Accounts receivable turnover ratio is calculated by dividing your revenue from operations by your average accounts receivable. The ratio is used to measure how effective a company is at extending credits and collecting 
debts. 

vii) Trade payables turnover ratio 
This ratio is used to measure the number of times the business 1s paying off its creditors or suppliers in an accounting period. It is computed by dividing lhe total purchases by average accounts payable 

viii) Net capi1al turnover ratio 
It is calculated by dividing annual sales by average stockholder equity (net worth). The ratio indicates how much a company could grow its current capital investment level. 

ix) Net profit ratio 
The net profit percentage is the ratio of after-tax profits to net sales. It reveals the remaining profit after all costs of production, administration, and financing have been deducted from sales, and income taxes recognized 

x) Return on capital employed 
Return on Capital Employed is calculated by dividing our EBIT during a given period by Capital Employed (net worth, total debt, deferred tax liability) during lhat period. 

xi) Return on investment 
Return on investment (ROI) is a performance measure used to evaluate the efficiency or profitability of an investment or compare the efficiency of a number of different investments To calculate ROI, the benefit (or return) of 
an investment is divided by the cost of the investment. 

Ratio Numerator Denominator 
Asat 

March 31, 2025 
Asat 

March 31, 2024 
% change Reason for variance 

i) Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 1.55 0.60 159
% Ihc variance. is due to increase in 

Investments m mutual funds 

ii) Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Total Equity 0.38 0.47 19¼ NA 

iii) Debt service coverage ratio 

Earnings available for debt service= 
Net Profit after tax+ Non cash Debt service= Interest & 
operating expenses+ Interest + lease payments+ Principal 
Other adjustments like loss on sale Repayments 
of fixed assets, etc 

3.24 2.43 
JJ¾ The variance 1s due to mcrease m 

profit for the year 

iv) Return on equity ratio% 

v) Inventory turnover ratio 

Net Profit after tax 
Average Shareholders 
equity 

Cost of Goods sold = opening 
inventory + purchases - closing 
inventory 

Average Inventory 

vi) Trade receivables turnover ratio Revenue from operations 
Average Accounts 
Receivable 

vii) Trade payables turnover ratio Average Trade Payables 

viii) Net capital turnover ratio 

T otal Purchases 

Net sales 
Average Shareholders 
equity 

ix) Net profit ratio% Net Profit Net Sales 

x) Return on capital employed% Earnings before interest and taxes 
Capital Employed= Net 
Worth+ Total Debt➔ 

Deferred Tax Liability 

xi) Return on investment% Interest (Finance Income) 
Investment in fixed 
deposits 

0.31 0.29 

12.39 I I.SO 

22.23 22.25 

I. 15 1.05 

I 98 2.22 

15.38% 13.09% 

32.26% 32.95% 

298% 5.02% 

-5% NA 

8% NA 

0% NA 

9% NA 

Ii¾ NA 

-18¾ NA 

-2% NA 

The variance is due to increase in 
--41% investment in Bank deposits 

during the month of March 2025. 



Mantpat Hospitals Private Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

43 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per the Micr-o, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED): 
(fin crores) 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
(i) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 
(ii) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 
(iii) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 
(iv) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 ofMSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the 
appointed day during the year 

(v) Interest paid, under Section 16 ofMSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day 
during the year 

(vi) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already made 
(vii) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years 

6.11 5.40 

44 Other Statutory Information 
(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property. 

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, 

(iv) The Company is in compliance with number of layers of companies, as prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017, 

(v) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year 

(vi) During the year ended March 31, 2025, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Intennediaries) with the understanding that the 
Intermediary shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

The Company has complied with relevant provisions of the applicable law for this transaction. The Company has complied with relevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (42 of 1999), lo the 
extent applicable, the Companies Act, 20 l 3 for such transaction and this transaction is not violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002 ( I 5 of 2003) 

(vii) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall. 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

(viii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(ix) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

45 During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has acquired 84.07% shareholding in MHECPL and consequently MHEIPL has become the subsidiary of the Company. The Company has not prepared the 

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 as required under Ind AS I IO• Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company has availed the exemption available under Ind AS 110 whereby 

MHElPL shall be included in the consolidated financial statement of MHEPL, Holding Company. For this purpose, the shareholders of the Company has provided consent for consolidation of MHEIPL in MHEPL 

As per our report of even date attached 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

F~d J;:;)l;m:er 
£t.~'"- Partner 

Membership number: 118756 

101248W/W- 100022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Director-s of .. t;:J Hospitals Pr;v'!:'Hed 
~:1tl~ 

Director 
DIN: 07554053 

Director 
DIN: 01195055 

Khadija G Vahora 
Company Secretary 
Membership number: A37266 

Place : Bengaluru 
Dale : May 27. 2025 

Place : Bengaluru 
Date: May 27. 2025 
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